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Mission Statement 

The Mission of Sally Tex�le Mills Limited is to be the finest 
organiza�on, and to conduct business responsibly 

and in a straight forward way. 

Our hallmark is honesty, innova�on, teamwork of our people
and our ability to respond effec�vely to change in all aspects 

of life including technology, culture and environment. 

Our basic aim is to benefit the customers, employees
and shareholders and to fulfill our commitments to the society. 

We will create a work environment, which mo�vates, recognizes 
and rewards achievements at all levels of the organiza�on because

In Allah We Believe & In People We Trust 
We will always conduct ourselves with integrity 

and strive to be the best 
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Vision and Mission Statement

Vision 

Mission 

To achieve consistent superior performance in all respects, provide quality products to our valued 
customer and run the company purely on professional grounds 

Statement of Ethics and Business Prac�ces 

Ÿ Con�nuous improvement in total quality performance by achieving high standards in our products and 
providing these to our customers without error, on �me and every �me. 

Ÿ We are dedicated to supply the product of highest quality and standards, yet at a reasonable cost for 
our na�onal and interna�onal customer’s sa�sfac�on. 

Ÿ All of our commitments, ac�ons and products must be recognized as an expression of quality. 

Ÿ We are commi�ed to improve our skills and know-how, competency, prac�cal experience and training 
of employees by implemen�ng quality system.

Ÿ We con�nuously improve the performance of quality standards through prac�cal par�cipa�on of our 
employees at all levels.

Ÿ Our mission is to meet Na�onal and Interna�onal Standards, Customers’ Sa�sfac�on and Con�nuous 
Improvements in our standards through use of latest methods and employees sa�sfac�on. 

We believe that a complete code of ethics is essen�al for the maintenance of integrity and professionalism 
in the day-to-day func�oning of Sally Tex�le Mills Limited. We always place the Company’s interest first 
through resource management namely human, financial and other infra structural facili�es and to ensure 
reasonable return to all the shareholders. Conduct business as a responsible and law abiding corporate 
member of society to achieve its legi�mate commercial objec�ve and supports uncondi�onally the 
Compliance with best Prac�ces of Corporate Governance for the be�erment of corporate culture. We 
develop and observe cost effec�ve prac�ces in our ac�vi�es and strive for excellence and quality. We 
encourage ini�a�ve and self-realiza�on in employees through meaningful empowerment. 
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No�ce of Annual General Mee�ng
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No�ce is hereby given that 57th Annual General Mee�ng of the company will be held on Thursday 23rd October, 
2025 at 10:30 a.m. at its registered office 2-S, Gulberg-II, Lahore to transact the following business.

1. To confirm the minutes of 56th Annual General Mee�ng held on 28-10-2024.

2. To receive and adopt the accounts of the company along with the Directors report for the year ended June 30, 
2025.

 In accordance with sec�on 223 of the Companies Act, 2017 and pursuant to the S.R.O 389/(l)/2023 dated 
March 21, 2023, the financial statements of the Company's website which can be accessed from the below 
link.   

      www.sallytex�le.com

3. To appoint the Auditors and fix their remunera�on for the next financial year 2025-2026.

4. Any other ma�er with the permission of the chair.

Date: October 02, 2025
Place: LAHORE

   By the order of the Board

SYED ABID RAZA ZAIDI
(Company Secretary)

NOTES:

I. The shares transfer books of the company will remain closed from 10-10-2025 to 23-10-2025. (Both days 
inclusive). Transfer received in order by the Share Registrar M/S Corplink (Pvt) Ltd Wing Arcade, 1-K, 
Commercial, Model Town, Lahore 09-10-2025 will be consider in �me for the purpose of a�endance at the 
Annual General Mee�ng.

II. A member, who has deposited his/her shares into Central Depositary Company of Pakistan Limited, must bring 
his/her par�cipant's ID number and CDC account/sub-account number along with original Computerized 
Na�onal Iden�ty Card (CNIC) or original Passport at the �me of a�ending the mee�ng.

III. A member en�tled to a�end and vote at the mee�ng may appoint another member as his/her proxy to a�end, 
speak and vote instead of his/her.

IV. Forms of proxy, in order to be valid must be properly filled-in/executed and received at the registered office of 
the company situated at 2-S, Gulberg-II, Lahore not later than 48 hours before the �me of the mee�ng.

V. Members are requested to promptly no�fy Share Registrar of the Company if any change in their addresses.

VI. Members who have not yet submi�ed photocopy of their valid Computerized Na�onal Iden�ty Card (CNIC) 
are requested to send the same to our Share Registrar at the earliest.    

VII. Form of proxy will available on company's website.
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---
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1,8301,8291868

1,6771,6391,605

2,6742,7352,640

Non-current assets 

Current assets 

Total assets 

Share capital & reserves 

Total equity 

Current liabili�es 

Total 

Sales

Gross (loss)/profit 

(Loss) / Profit before tax 

Tax 

Surplus on revalua�on 

OPERATING PERFORMANCE

FINANCIAL POSITION 

Non-current liabili�es 

Total liabili�es 

Assets

Equity & liabili�es

Key Opera�ng and Financial Data

Rupees in million 

(Loss) / Profit a�er tax 

2023

-

(33)

(106)

9.4

(96)

768
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1,573

(1337)

207

(1130)

819

1884

1,573

2,703

20242025

--

(32)(30)

(204)(377)

98.5

(195)(292)

736707

760760

1,4961,467

(667)(694)

204201

(472)(493)

129121

18391839

1,4961,467

1,9681,960
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Audit Commi�ee Mee�ng and A�endance

During the year four mee�ngs of the audit commi�ee of the company were held; a�endance by each 
member is as under.

Health Safety and Environment

Your company is well aware of the importance of workers and staff therefore the company is commi�ed 
towards all aspects of safety, health and environment connected with our business.

Financial Statements

The Financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors on 
October 01, 2025 and authorized for their issuance. Opera�ng and financial data of last six years is 
annexed.

Code of corporate governance

The requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by the Pakistan Stock Exchange in its lis�ng 
regula�ons, relevant for the year ended June 30, 2025 have been adopted by the company and have been 
duly complied with. Statement to this effect is annexed to the report.

Pa�ern of Shareholding

The pa�ern of shareholding and addi�onal informa�on regarding pa�ern of shareholding is a�ached 
separately.

No trade in the shares of company was carried out by CEO, CFO and Company Secretary and their spouses 
and minor children except those that have been duly reported as per law.

Board Mee�ng and A�endance

During the year four mee�ngs of the Board of Directors of the company were held a�endance by each 
director is narrated below for which directors' are not paid any remunera�on or mee�ng fee:-

Sr. No. Name A�endance

Mian Iqbal Salahuddin

Mian Yousaf Salahuddin

Mian Asad Salahuddin

Mst. Munira Salahuddin

Mian Sohail Salahuddin

Syed Abid Raza Zaidi

M.Khalil La�f

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

08

Descrip�on
June 30, 2025

Rs. in ‘000’

Turnover - net

Gross Profit / (Loss)

Loss before tax

Loss a�er tax 

Directors’ Report

The Directors of Sally Tex�le Mills Limited (“the Company”) present the 57th annual report of the 
Company for the period ended June 30, 2025.

Overview - Performance review

During the period under review, mill opera�ons remained shut down. As evident from our accounts, there 
was no business conducted.  The board is expec�ng same uncertainty for future un�l ma�er is resolved 
with banking companies and business of the company is restored.

The financial results in a summarized form are given hereunder:

Loss per share

Loss per share of your company for ended June 30, 2025 is Rs. (3.33) as compared to Rs. (22.24) for the 
compara�ve period ended June 30, 2024.

Modifica�on in Auditors' Report and Going Concern assump�ons

The Company had been facing opera�onal losses. High cost of business due to leverage remains the main 
impediment for re-star�ng opera�ons. Books of account could not be updated due to closure of opera�ons 
and non-availability of staff. In addi�on, delays in approvals/post-approval formali�es from financial 
ins�tu�ons resulted in further losses which eventually led to hal�ng mill opera�ons.  The Company is 
rigorously following li�ga�on with the banking companies for suitable resolu�on.

Internal financial controls

A system of internal control is established and implemented at all levels within the Company to ensure 
achievement of Company objec�ves and compliance with laws and regula�ons.

Risk management

Your Company has formulated risk management structure by an�cipa�ng risks and mi�ga�ng the risks 
swi�ly.  In order to address business related risks, the risk management policy specifies role for each 
individual department for taking appropriate measures.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Your company gives high priority to its social responsibili�es. However, due to nega�ve cash – our CSR 
levels were curtailed this year.

June 30, 2024
Rs. in ‘000’

(29,969)

(37,734)

(29,196)

-

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025 Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025

(31,516)

(204,116)

(195,115)

-
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Lahore: October 01, 2025   

 

For and on behalf of the Board

MIAN IQBAL SALAHUDDIN

Chief Execu�ve Officer 

 

Material changes in commitments

No material changes and commitments affec�ng the financial posi�on of the Company have occurred 
between the end of the financial year to which this balance sheet relates and the date of the report.

Auditors

The present auditors M/S H.A.M.D & CO. re�red in 2025 and had offered themselves for re-appointment as 
auditors of the company for the year 2025-26 with their own consent. 

Acknowledgement

Yours directors record with apprecia�on, the efforts of the company's exis�ng staff who have vigorously 
trying to find an amicable solu�on to all pending issues. 

HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee

During the year, one mee�ng of HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee of the company was held; a�endance by 
each member is as under.

Sr. No. Name A�endance

1

2

3

Mst. Munera Salahuddin 1

1

1

Mian Sohail Salahuddin

M. Khalil La�f 

Sr. No. Name A�endance

1

2

3

4

4

4

Mian Asad Salahuddin

Mian Sohail Salahuddin

M. Khalil La�f

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025 Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025
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10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of internal audit, 
including their remunera�on and terms and condi�ons of employment and complied with relevant 
requirements of the Regula�ons;

11.  Chief Financial Officer and Chief Execu�ve Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the 
Board.

12.  The Board has formed commi�ees comprising of members given below.-

a) Audit Commi�ee:

1. Mr. Muhammad Khalil La�f 
2. Mian Asad Salahuddin
3. Mian Sohail Salahuddin

b) HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee:

1. Mr. Muhammad Khalil La�f  
2. Mst. Munira Salahuddin
3. Mian Sohail Salahuddin

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid commi�ees have been formed, documented and advised to the 
commi�ee for compliance;

14.  The frequency of mee�ngs (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the commi�ee were as per following,-

 a) Audit Commi�ee    (Quarterly)
 b) HR and Remunera�on Commi�ee  (Yearly)

15. The Board has set up an effec�ve internal audit func�on/ or has outsourced the internal audit func�on to who 
are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and 
procedures of the company;

16.  The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a sa�sfactory ra�ng under the 
quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or 
any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the 
firm and all its partners are in compliance with Interna�onal Federa�on of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on 
code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP;

17.  The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the Act, these Regula�ons or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have 
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18.  We confirm that all offers requirements of the regula�ons have been complied with except that the Board has 
not yet put in place a mechanism for annual evalua�on of its performance. 

Lahore: October 01, 2025   

 

For and on behalf of the Board

MIAN IQBAL SALAHUDDIN

Chief Execu�ve Officer 
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regula�ons 2019

for the year ended June 30, 2025

Category Names

Independent Director

Execu�ve Directors

Other Non-Execu�ve Directors

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regula�ons in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are Seven as per the following:

 a) Male:  Seven

 b) Female:  One

2. The composi�on of board is as follows:

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, 
including this company;

4.  The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the company along with its suppor�ng policies and procedures;

5.  The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
company. The Board has ensured that complete record of par�culars of the significant policies along with their 
date of approval or upda�ng is maintained by the company;

6.  All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant ma�ers have been taken by the 
Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regula�ons;

7. The mee�ngs of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the 
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regula�ons with respect 
to frequency, recording and circula�ng minutes of mee�ng of the Board;

8.  The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remunera�on of directors in accordance with the 
Act and these Regula�ons;

9.  The company stands complied with the requirement of having half of the Directors on their board under 
Directors Training Program cer�fied as prescribed under the Regula�on. The remaining directors shall obtain 
cer�fica�on under the DTP in due course of �me.

Muhammad Khalil La�f

Mst. Munira Salahuddin

Mian Asad Salahuddin

Syed Abid Raza Zaidi

Mian Sohail Salahuddin

Mian Iqbal Salahuddin

Mian Yousaf Salahuddin
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We were engaged to reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regula�ons, 2019 ['the Regula�ons'] prepared by the Board of Directors of SALLY TEXTILE MILLS 
LIMITED for the year ended 30 June 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regula�on 36 of the Regula�ons.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regula�ons is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance 
with the provisions of the Regula�ons and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the 
requirements of the Regula�ons. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of 
various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regula�ons.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accoun�ng and 
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effec�ve audit approach. We are not required to 
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an 
opinion on the effec�veness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regula�ons require the Company to place before the Audit Commi�ee, and upon recommenda�on of the Audit 
Commi�ee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transac�ons and also 
ensure compliance with the requirements of sec�on 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required to 
ensure compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transac�ons by the Board of 
Directors upon recommenda�on of the Audit Commi�ee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and 
determine the Company's process for iden�fica�on of related par�es and that whether the related party 
transac�ons were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

No informa�on necessary for the purpose of review was provided to us, accordingly, we do not express our 
conclusion as to whether the Statement of Compliance appropriately reflects the Company's compliance, in all 
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regula�ons as applicable to the Company for the year 
ended 30 June 2025.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regula�ons, 2019

H.A.M.D & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Lahore: 
Date:  01 October 2025
UDIN: CR202510040hLuSsdBbg

To the members of Sally Tex�le Mills Limited

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



We were engaged to reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regula�ons, 2019 ['the Regula�ons'] prepared by the Board of Directors of SALLY TEXTILE MILLS 
LIMITED for the year ended 30 June 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regula�on 36 of the Regula�ons.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regula�ons is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance 
with the provisions of the Regula�ons and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the 
requirements of the Regula�ons. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of 
various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regula�ons.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accoun�ng and 
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effec�ve audit approach. We are not required to 
consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an 
opinion on the effec�veness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regula�ons require the Company to place before the Audit Commi�ee, and upon recommenda�on of the Audit 
Commi�ee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transac�ons and also 
ensure compliance with the requirements of sec�on 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required to 
ensure compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transac�ons by the Board of 
Directors upon recommenda�on of the Audit Commi�ee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and 
determine the Company's process for iden�fica�on of related par�es and that whether the related party 
transac�ons were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

No informa�on necessary for the purpose of review was provided to us, accordingly, we do not express our 
conclusion as to whether the Statement of Compliance appropriately reflects the Company's compliance, in all 
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regula�ons as applicable to the Company for the year 
ended 30 June 2025.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regula�ons, 2019

H.A.M.D & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Lahore: 
Date:  01 October 2025
UDIN: CR202510040hLuSsdBbg

To the members of Sally Tex�le Mills Limited



19

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to con�nue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accoun�ng unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c 
alterna�ve but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repor�ng process.

Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Company's financial statements in accordance with Interna�onal 
Standards on Audi�ng and to issue an auditor's report. However, because of the ma�ers described in the 'Basis for 
Disclaimer of Opinion' sec�on of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to 
provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Interna�onal Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan ['the 
Code'] and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with the Code.19

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that we are unable to express an opinion as to whether:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial posi�on, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been 
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of 
account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
Company's business; and

d) no zakat was deduc�ble at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the review resul�ng in this independent auditor's report is Waseem Ashfaq.

H.A.M.D & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Lahore: 
Date:  01 October 2025
UDIN: AR2025100401XeCzREuP

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the annexed financial statements of SALLY TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED ['the Company'], 
which comprise the statement of financial posi�on as at 30 June 2025, the statement of profit or loss, the statement 
of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory 
informa�on.

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements of the Company. Because of the 
significance of the ma�ers described in the 'Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion' sec�on of our report, we have not been 
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial 
statements.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

a) We were not provided access to factory premises by the management of the Company due to which we were 
unable to observe the coun�ng of physical inventories and to conduct physical verifica�on of property, plant 
and equipment at the end of the year and there were no prac�cal alterna�ve audit procedures to be carried 
out by us in order to sa�sfy ourselves about existence and condi�ons of stores & spares items, stock in trade 
and property, plant & equipment and to ensure the appropriateness of values assigned respec�vely of Rs. 
37.40 million, Rs. 565.44 million and Rs. 695.75 million respec�vely. 

b) The Company has not provided us access to its books of account, record and other informa�on which were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

c) We draw a�en�on to the note 2.1 to the annexed financial statements, as more fully described in that note, the 
Company has incurred loss a�er tax of Rs. 29.196 million (2024: Rs. 195.115 million) at the repor�ng date and 
its accumulated losses stood at Rs. 1,643.28 million (2024: Rs. 1,617.23 million) at year end which resulted in 
nega�ve equity to Rs. 493.036 million (2024: Rs. 472.13 million).  Its current liabili�es exceeded its current 
assets by Rs. 1,078.78 million (2024: Rs. 1,078.82 million).  The Company has also suspended its opera�ons 
since 2019.  Furthermore, the Company is unable to pay borrowing from banking companies and in li�ga�on 
with the banking companies due to its inability comply with loan agreements. These factors along with the 
other ma�ers described in that note cast significant doubt on the company's ability to con�nue as a going 
concern and therefore it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabili�es in the normal course of 
business. Therefore, the Company is not a going concern and financial statement should be presented at their 
appropriate realizable values.  On the other hand, The SECP vide its announcement dated June 16, 2023 
authorized the Registrar, Company Registra�on Office, Lahore, to present a pe��on of winding up of the 
Company before Honorable High Court.  However, the management has prepared the accompanied financial 
statements applying going concern basis of accoun�ng.

Responsibili�es of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the prepara�on and fair presenta�on of the financial statements in accordance with 
the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX 
of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the prepara�on of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of SALLY TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
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To the members of SALLY TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
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Director 
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Chief Financial Officer
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital

Issued share capital

Revaluation reserve

Loan from sponsors

Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

LOAN FROM SPONSORS

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances

Employees retirement benefits - Gratuity

Deferred taxation

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Short term borrowings

Accrued interest / profit

Current portion of non-current liabilities

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

6 200,000,000      200,000,000      

7 87,750,000        87,750,000        

8 200,976,397      204,118,039      

9 861,520,405      853,226,205      

(1,643,283,453)  (1,617,228,483)  

(493,036,651)     (472,134,239)     

9 -                     

10 -                     -                     

11 101,907,337      101,907,337      

12 19,341,829        27,879,434        

121,249,166      129,786,771      

13 418,172,110      418,172,110      

1,010,033          1,010,033          

14 722,544,931      722,544,931      

15 386,279,029      386,279,029      

310,833,334      310,833,334      

1,838,839,437   1,838,839,436   

1,960,088,603   1,968,626,207   

16

1,467,051,952   1,496,491,968
                                    

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Long term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares

Stock in trade

Trade receivables

Short term deposits

Advances and other receivables

Current taxation

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

17 695,749,734      725,189,751      

18 11,243,604        11,243,604        

706,993,338      736,433,355      

37,405,935        37,405,935        

19 565,440,498      565,440,498      

20 96,587,763        96,587,763        

1,613,107          1,613,107          

21 44,617,101        44,617,101        

22 11,764,760        11,764,760        

23 2,629,447          2,629,448          

760,058,614      760,058,613      

1,467,051,952   1,496,491,968   
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital

Issued share capital

Revaluation reserve

Loan from sponsors

Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

LOAN FROM SPONSORS

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term finances

Employees retirement benefits - Gratuity

Deferred taxation

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Short term borrowings

Accrued interest / profit

Current portion of non-current liabilities

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

6 200,000,000      200,000,000      

7 87,750,000        87,750,000        

8 200,976,397      204,118,039      

9 861,520,405      853,226,205      

(1,643,283,453)  (1,617,228,483)  

(493,036,651)     (472,134,239)     

9 -                     

10 -                     -                     

11 101,907,337      101,907,337      

12 19,341,829        27,879,434        

121,249,166      129,786,771      

13 418,172,110      418,172,110      

1,010,033          1,010,033          

14 722,544,931      722,544,931      

15 386,279,029      386,279,029      

310,833,334      310,833,334      

1,838,839,437   1,838,839,436   

1,960,088,603   1,968,626,207   
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1,467,051,952   1,496,491,968
                                    

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Long term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares

Stock in trade

Trade receivables

Short term deposits

Advances and other receivables

Current taxation

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

17 695,749,734      725,189,751      

18 11,243,604        11,243,604        

706,993,338      736,433,355      

37,405,935        37,405,935        

19 565,440,498      565,440,498      

20 96,587,763        96,587,763        

1,613,107          1,613,107          

21 44,617,101        44,617,101        

22 11,764,760        11,764,760        

23 2,629,447          2,629,448          

760,058,614      760,058,613      

1,467,051,952   1,496,491,968   
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Revenue from contracts with customers - net

Cost of sales

Gross loss

Administrative expenses

Other income

Operating loss

Finance cost

Notional interest

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Provision for taxation

Profit/(loss) after taxation

Earnings/(loss) per share - basic and diluted

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

-                     -                     

24 (29,969,513)       (31,516,303)       

(29,969,513)       (31,516,303)       

25 (7,764,704)         (11,210,881)       

(37,734,217)       (42,727,184)       

26 -                     -                     

(37,734,217)       (42,727,184)       

27 -                     

9.3 -                     (161,389,590)     

(37,734,217)       (204,116,774)     

28 8,537,605          9,001,376          

(29,196,612)       (195,115,398)     

29 (3.33)                  (22.24)                

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Other comprehensive income

Profit/(loss) after taxation

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

-                     -                     

(29,196,612)       (195,115,398)     

(29,196,612)       (195,115,398)     

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Other comprehensive income

Profit/(loss) after taxation

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

-                     -                     

(29,196,612)       (195,115,398)     

(29,196,612)       (195,115,398)     

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SHARE 

CAPITAL

REVENUE 

RESERVE

Issued Revaluation Loan from Accumulated Total

share capital reserve sponsors losses Equity

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Balance as at 01 July 2023 87,750,000
        

207,406,125
      

-
                     

(1,425,401,171)
  

(1,130,245,046)
  

Comprehensive income

Profit after taxation -
                     

-
                     

-
                     

(195,115,398)
     

(195,115,398)
     Other comprehensive income -

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
-

                     
Total comprehensive income -

                     
-

                     
-

                     
(195,115,398)

     
(195,115,398)

     

Incremental depreciation -

                     
(3,288,086)

         
3,288,086

          
-

                     
Transaction with owners/sponsors -

                     

-

                     

853,226,205

      

-

                     

853,226,205

      

Balance as at 30 June 2024 87,750,000

        

204,118,039

      

853,226,205

      

(1,617,228,483)

  

(472,134,239)

     
Balance as at 01 July 2023 87,750,000

        

204,118,039

      

853,226,205

      

(1,617,228,483)

  

(472,134,239)

     
Comprehensive income

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

(29,196,612)

       

(29,196,612)

       
Other comprehensive income -

                     

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     

-

                     Total comprehensive income -

                     

-

                     

-

                     

(29,196,612)

       

(29,196,612)

       
Incremental depreciation -

                     

(3,141,642)

         

-

                     

3,141,642

          

-

                     Transaction with owners/sponsors - addition -

                     

8,294,200

          

8,294,200

          Balance as at 30 June 2025 87,750,000

        

200,976,397

      

861,520,405

      

(1,643,283,453)

  

(493,036,651)

     

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CAPITAL RESERVE

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash used in operations

Payments for:

Income tax

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan form sponsors obtained

Net increase/(decrease) in short term borrowings

Net cash generated from financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT END OF THE YEAR

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

30 (8,294,200)         (11,726,206)       

(0)                       -                     

(8,294,200)         (11,726,206)       

-                     -                     

-                     -                     

8,294,200          11,726,205        

(0)                       -                     

8,294,200          11,726,205        

(0)                       (1)                       

2,629,448          2,629,448          

31 2,629,447          2,629,448          

(0)                                    (0)                                    
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Payments for:
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Net cash used in operating activities
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Rupees Rupees
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(0)                       -                     
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0.2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of

accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and

judgmentsare based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of

which forms the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Subsequently, actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

1 LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

-

Going concern assumption

0.1 Basis of measurement

Items Measurement basis

Financial liabilities Amortized cost

Financial assets Amortized cost

Employee retirement benefits Present value

Land, building, plant and machinery Revalued amounts

Sally Textile MillsLimited ['the Company'] is incorporated in Pakistan as a PublicLimited Companyunder the CompaniesOrdinance, 1984, vide No.

C-119/LR of 1968-1969, dated 11 June 1969, (now CUIN0002900) and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is a spinning unit

engaged in the manufacture and sale of yarn. The registered office of the Company is situated at 4 F, Gulberg II, Lahore. The manufacturing

facility, including the power generation unit, is located at Joharabad District Khushab in the Province of Punjab.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The

accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:

Pakistan Stock Exchange had placed the Company on defaulter segment with effect from 07 Feburary 2019.

International Financial Reporting Standards ['IFRS'] issued by the International Accounting Standards Board [IASB] as notified under the

Companies Act, 2017;

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards ['IFAS'] issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies

Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the CompaniesAct, 2017 differ from the IFRS,the provisions of and directives issued under the

Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items, which are measured on an alternative

basis as at the reporting date.

Subsequent to the year-end June 30, 2019, the Company did not carry out operating activities which resulted in losses. The loss in the current

year June 30, 2025 was Rs. 29.196 millionand its aggregated losses stood at Rs. 1,643.28 millionwhich resulted into negative equity of Rs.

493.036 million. Its current liabilitiesexceed its current assets by Rs. 1,078.78 million. The Company has also suspended its operations since

August 2018. The company has been unable to settle its liabilitiestoward banks and other creditors. The banking companies have file recovery

suits against the Company and the Company is defending the suits filed by the banks. The SECPvide its announcement dated June 16, 2023

authorized the Registrar, Company Registration Office, Lahore, to present a petition of winding up of the Company before Honarable High Court.

The Company has been facing operational losses due to decrease in selling prices in local as well as international markets, the on-going power

crises, dumping of Indian yarn at low prices along with other factors, including economic instability and unfaviourbale textile policy of the

Government,affecting the textile industry. The Companyhas not been able to utilize its production capacity at an optimumlevel due to which the

desired profitability remained unachieved.

The conditions stated in the foregoing paragraph, cast significant doubts about the Company’sability to continue to operate as a going concern

for a foreseeable period and the Companymay not be able to realize it assets and settled liabilitiesin normalcourse of business. The directors of

the Company intends to liquidate its assets and the Company under the circumstances. These financial statements have been prepared by the

managementapplying going concern basis of accounting and no adjustments were made in these financial statements to bring its assets and

liabilities at their realizable values.

However, the Companyhas continued financial support of its sponsors in the form of interest free loans. During the year, the sponsors provided

financial support amounting to Rs. 8.29 million in the form of interest free loan.

0.2.1 Critical accounting judgements

(a) Business model assessment (see note 35.1)

(b) Significant increase in credit risk (see note 36.1)

0.2.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a) Calculation of impairment allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets (see note 36.1.3)

(b) Revaluation of property, plant and equipment (see note 17)

(c) Taxation provisions (see note 28)

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate and other relevant legal forums while

estimating its provisions for current tax and tax contingencies. The provision for current tax is estimatedat Rs. nil (30-Jun-24: Rs. nil). The

management believes that the provision for current tax made in the financial statements is sufficient to discharge related tax liability.

Reversal of provision (30-Jun-25) for deferred tax of Rs.10.108 million(30-Jun-24:Credit Rs. 9001 million)has been estimated after taking

into account historical and future turnover and profit trends and their taxability under the current tax law. 

Judgmentsmadeby managementin the applicationof accounting and reporting standards that have significant effect on the financial statements

and estimates with a risk of material adjustment in subsequent years are as follows:

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimationuncertainty at the reporting date that may have a significant risk

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how

financial assets are managed to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant

evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance

of the assets and how these are managed. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value that are

derecognized prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of

the business for which the asset was held. Monitoringis part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business modelfor

which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in

business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. No such changes were required during the year.

As explained in note 36.1, expected credit losses ['ECL']are measured, based on the Company's risk grading framework, as an allowance

equal to 12-month/lifetime ECL for 'performing' assets, or lifetime ECL for assets categorized as 'doubtful' or 'in default'. An asset is

categorized as 'doubtful' when its credit risk has increased significantly since initialrecognition. IFRS9 does not define what constitutes a

significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company takes into

account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

Further information on the taxation provisions is referred to in note 28.

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date of initial

recognition. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit risk since initial

recognition of the respective financial asset. Estimatingexpected credit losses and changes there in requires taking into account qualitative

and quantitative forward lookinginformation. When measuring expected credit losses on financial assets the Companyuses reasonable and

supportable forward looking information as well as historical data to calculate the difference between the contractual cash flows due and

those that the Company would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements, if any.

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring expected credit losses. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihoodof

default over a given timehorizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. If the

ECLrates on financial assets carried at amortized cost were higher (lower) by 10%, the loss allowance on those assets would have been

higher (lower) by Rs. 12.651 million(30-Jun-24: Rs. 12.651 million).Further information on the Company's credit risk managementpractices

and credit quality and impairment of financial assets is referred to in note 36.1.3.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried out by independent professional valuers. Revalued amounts of non-depreciable items 

are determined by reference to local market values and that of depreciable items are determined by reference to present depreciated

replacement values. Refer to note 38.3.1 for an analysis of sensitivity of revalued amounts of property, plant and equipment.
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0.2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of

accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions and

judgmentsare based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of

which forms the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Subsequently, actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 
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-
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Items Measurement basis
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Employee retirement benefits Present value

Land, building, plant and machinery Revalued amounts

Sally Textile MillsLimited ['the Company'] is incorporated in Pakistan as a PublicLimited Companyunder the CompaniesOrdinance, 1984, vide No.

C-119/LR of 1968-1969, dated 11 June 1969, (now CUIN0002900) and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is a spinning unit

engaged in the manufacture and sale of yarn. The registered office of the Company is situated at 4 F, Gulberg II, Lahore. The manufacturing

facility, including the power generation unit, is located at Joharabad District Khushab in the Province of Punjab.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The

accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise:

Pakistan Stock Exchange had placed the Company on defaulter segment with effect from 07 Feburary 2019.

International Financial Reporting Standards ['IFRS'] issued by the International Accounting Standards Board [IASB] as notified under the

Companies Act, 2017;

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards ['IFAS'] issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies

Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the CompaniesAct, 2017 differ from the IFRS,the provisions of and directives issued under the

Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items, which are measured on an alternative

basis as at the reporting date.

Subsequent to the year-end June 30, 2019, the Company did not carry out operating activities which resulted in losses. The loss in the current

year June 30, 2025 was Rs. 29.196 millionand its aggregated losses stood at Rs. 1,643.28 millionwhich resulted into negative equity of Rs.

493.036 million. Its current liabilitiesexceed its current assets by Rs. 1,078.78 million. The Company has also suspended its operations since

August 2018. The company has been unable to settle its liabilitiestoward banks and other creditors. The banking companies have file recovery

suits against the Company and the Company is defending the suits filed by the banks. The SECPvide its announcement dated June 16, 2023

authorized the Registrar, Company Registration Office, Lahore, to present a petition of winding up of the Company before Honarable High Court.

The Company has been facing operational losses due to decrease in selling prices in local as well as international markets, the on-going power

crises, dumping of Indian yarn at low prices along with other factors, including economic instability and unfaviourbale textile policy of the

Government,affecting the textile industry. The Companyhas not been able to utilize its production capacity at an optimumlevel due to which the

desired profitability remained unachieved.

The conditions stated in the foregoing paragraph, cast significant doubts about the Company’sability to continue to operate as a going concern

for a foreseeable period and the Companymay not be able to realize it assets and settled liabilitiesin normalcourse of business. The directors of

the Company intends to liquidate its assets and the Company under the circumstances. These financial statements have been prepared by the

managementapplying going concern basis of accounting and no adjustments were made in these financial statements to bring its assets and

liabilities at their realizable values.

However, the Companyhas continued financial support of its sponsors in the form of interest free loans. During the year, the sponsors provided

financial support amounting to Rs. 8.29 million in the form of interest free loan.

0.2.1 Critical accounting judgements

(a) Business model assessment (see note 35.1)

(b) Significant increase in credit risk (see note 36.1)

0.2.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a) Calculation of impairment allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets (see note 36.1.3)

(b) Revaluation of property, plant and equipment (see note 17)

(c) Taxation provisions (see note 28)

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by appellate and other relevant legal forums while

estimating its provisions for current tax and tax contingencies. The provision for current tax is estimatedat Rs. nil (30-Jun-24: Rs. nil). The

management believes that the provision for current tax made in the financial statements is sufficient to discharge related tax liability.

Reversal of provision (30-Jun-25) for deferred tax of Rs.10.108 million(30-Jun-24:Credit Rs. 9001 million)has been estimated after taking

into account historical and future turnover and profit trends and their taxability under the current tax law. 

Judgmentsmadeby managementin the applicationof accounting and reporting standards that have significant effect on the financial statements

and estimates with a risk of material adjustment in subsequent years are as follows:

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimationuncertainty at the reporting date that may have a significant risk

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

The Company classifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how

financial assets are managed to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant

evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance

of the assets and how these are managed. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or fair value that are

derecognized prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of

the business for which the asset was held. Monitoringis part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business modelfor

which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in

business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. No such changes were required during the year.

As explained in note 36.1, expected credit losses ['ECL']are measured, based on the Company's risk grading framework, as an allowance

equal to 12-month/lifetime ECL for 'performing' assets, or lifetime ECL for assets categorized as 'doubtful' or 'in default'. An asset is

categorized as 'doubtful' when its credit risk has increased significantly since initialrecognition. IFRS9 does not define what constitutes a

significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company takes into

account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

Further information on the taxation provisions is referred to in note 28.

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date of initial

recognition. The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit risk since initial

recognition of the respective financial asset. Estimatingexpected credit losses and changes there in requires taking into account qualitative

and quantitative forward lookinginformation. When measuring expected credit losses on financial assets the Companyuses reasonable and

supportable forward looking information as well as historical data to calculate the difference between the contractual cash flows due and

those that the Company would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements, if any.

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring expected credit losses. Probability of default is an estimate of the likelihoodof

default over a given timehorizon, the calculation of which includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. If the

ECLrates on financial assets carried at amortized cost were higher (lower) by 10%, the loss allowance on those assets would have been

higher (lower) by Rs. 12.651 million(30-Jun-24: Rs. 12.651 million).Further information on the Company's credit risk managementpractices

and credit quality and impairment of financial assets is referred to in note 36.1.3.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried out by independent professional valuers. Revalued amounts of non-depreciable items 

are determined by reference to local market values and that of depreciable items are determined by reference to present depreciated

replacement values. Refer to note 38.3.1 for an analysis of sensitivity of revalued amounts of property, plant and equipment.
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(d) Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and credits (see note 12)

0.3 Functional currency

3

3.1  - Lack of Exchangeability (Amendment to IAS 21)

4

IFRS S1 - General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information

IFRS S2 - Climate-related Disclosures

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

 IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements).

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16 - Leases)

IFRS 18 - Primary Financial Statements

IFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

January 1, 2026Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' regarding modification accounting

Amendmentsto IFRS9 'FinancialInstruments' regarding applicabilityperiod of optional temporary exemption

from applying IFRS 9 as given in IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts'.
January 1, 2026

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 9 and

IFRS 7)
January 1, 2026

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards January 1, 2026

January 1, 2026

Contracts Referencing Nature dependent Electricity (previously Power Purchase Agreements)

(Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7)
January 1, 2026

January 1, 2027

January 1, 2027

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE.

The Companyhas Rs. 479.684 million(30-Jun-21: Rs. 727.163 million)of tax losses and credits (other than depreciation) carried forward as

at the reporting date and available to the Company for utilization against future taxable profits. Out of these, deferred tax asset has been

recognized on tax losses and credits only to the extent of unabsorbed depreciation losses as the same are available for an infinite time

under the present income tax laws amounting to Rs. 139.108 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 210.877 million).

If the Company was able to recognize all unrecognized deferred tax assets, deferred tax assets and equity as at the reporting date would

have increased by Rs. 139.108 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 210.877 million)

These financial statements have been prepared in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional currency. The amounts reported in these

financial statements have been rounded to the nearest Rupees unless specified otherwise.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025.

The following new and revised standards, interpretations and amendmentsare effective in the current year but are either not relevant to the

Company or their application does not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company other than presentation and

disclosures, except as stated otherwise.

IFRS 17 – 'Insurance Contracts' (including amendments made in June 2020 and December 2021)

The following new standard and amendmentsare only effective for accounting periods, beginningon or after the date mentionedagainst each of

them. These amendmentsare either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's

financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the losses can be utilized. Significant managementjudgementis required to determinethe amountof deferred tax assets that

can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies. 

Effective date

(annual periods beginning

on or after)

Other than afore mentioned standards, interpretations and amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which have not been

notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ['SECP']:

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

5.2 Stores and spares

5.3 Stock in trade

Category Basis of determination of cost

Raw material Moving average cost

Work in process Average manufacturing cost

Finished goods Average manufacturing cost

Stock in transit Invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date

Depreciationon an item of property, plant and equipmentcommences from the month in which the itemis ready for intended use. Depreciation is

discontinued from the month in which it is disposed or classified as held for disposal.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Incrementaldepreciation being the difference between depreciation based on the revalued amounts recognized in profit or loss and depreciation

based on the historical cost, net of tax, is reclassified from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings. On the subsequent disposal or retirement 

of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods consists of direct material, labour and an appropriate proportion of

manufacturing overheads.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, with the exception of stock of waste which is valued at net realizable value. Cost is

determined using the following basis:

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land, buildings and plant and machinery is credited to the revaluation reserve, except

to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognized as an expense in profit or loss, in which case the

increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation

of such land, buildings and plant and machinery is recognized as an expense in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held 

in the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Land, buildings and plant and machinery held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrativepurposes, are stated

in the statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairmentlosses, except for freehold land, which is not depreciated. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity

such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the reporting date.

These are generally held for internal use and are valued at cost. Cost is determinedon the basis of moving average except for items in transit,

which are valued at invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date. For items which are considered obsolete, the carrying

amount is written down to nil. Spare parts held exclusively for capitalization are classified as property, plant and equipment.

All other items or property, plant and equipment(tools and equipment,office equipment,furniture and fixtures, arms and ammunitionand vehicles)

are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Assets in the course of construction for production, supply or administrativepurposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost,

less any recognized impairmentloss. Cost includes the cost of material, labour and appropriate overheads directly relating to the construction,

erection and installationof the asset and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy.

Depreciationof these assets, determinedon the same basis as other assets of the same class, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss, using rates specified in note 17, so as to write off the cost or revalued amounts of assets (other than

freehold land and assets under construction) over their useful lives, using the reducing balance method, with the exception of computer

hardware and allied items, which are depreciated using straight line methodover their useful lives, and right-of-use assets, for which the lease

does not transfer ownership of the underlying asset to the Company at the end of lease term, which are depreciated over the shorter of lease

term and useful lives of the underlying assets, using straight line method.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the 

financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022.

The Company intends to adopt these new and revised standards, interpretations and amendmentson their effective dates, subject to, where

required, notification by Securities and Exchange Commissionof Pakistanunder section 225 of the CompaniesAct, 2017 regarding their adoption.

The managementanticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendmentsand interpretations in future periods, will not have a material

impact on the Company's financial statements other than in presentation/disclosures.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its

continued use. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of such items is determinedas the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
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(d) Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses and credits (see note 12)

0.3 Functional currency

3

3.1  - Lack of Exchangeability (Amendment to IAS 21)

4

IFRS S1 - General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information

IFRS S2 - Climate-related Disclosures

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

 IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements).

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16 - Leases)

IFRS 18 - Primary Financial Statements

IFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

January 1, 2026Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' regarding modification accounting

Amendmentsto IFRS9 'FinancialInstruments' regarding applicabilityperiod of optional temporary exemption

from applying IFRS 9 as given in IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts'.
January 1, 2026

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 9 and

IFRS 7)
January 1, 2026

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards January 1, 2026

January 1, 2026

Contracts Referencing Nature dependent Electricity (previously Power Purchase Agreements)

(Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7)
January 1, 2026

January 1, 2027

January 1, 2027

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS NOT YET EFFECTIVE.

The Companyhas Rs. 479.684 million(30-Jun-21: Rs. 727.163 million)of tax losses and credits (other than depreciation) carried forward as

at the reporting date and available to the Company for utilization against future taxable profits. Out of these, deferred tax asset has been

recognized on tax losses and credits only to the extent of unabsorbed depreciation losses as the same are available for an infinite time

under the present income tax laws amounting to Rs. 139.108 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 210.877 million).

If the Company was able to recognize all unrecognized deferred tax assets, deferred tax assets and equity as at the reporting date would

have increased by Rs. 139.108 million (30-Jun-24: Rs. 210.877 million)

These financial statements have been prepared in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional currency. The amounts reported in these

financial statements have been rounded to the nearest Rupees unless specified otherwise.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025.

The following new and revised standards, interpretations and amendmentsare effective in the current year but are either not relevant to the

Company or their application does not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company other than presentation and

disclosures, except as stated otherwise.

IFRS 17 – 'Insurance Contracts' (including amendments made in June 2020 and December 2021)

The following new standard and amendmentsare only effective for accounting periods, beginningon or after the date mentionedagainst each of

them. These amendmentsare either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's

financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available

against which the losses can be utilized. Significant managementjudgementis required to determinethe amountof deferred tax assets that

can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies. 

Effective date

(annual periods beginning

on or after)

Other than afore mentioned standards, interpretations and amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which have not been

notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ['SECP']:

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

5.1 Property, plant and equipment

5.2 Stores and spares

5.3 Stock in trade

Category Basis of determination of cost

Raw material Moving average cost

Work in process Average manufacturing cost

Finished goods Average manufacturing cost

Stock in transit Invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date

Depreciationon an item of property, plant and equipmentcommences from the month in which the itemis ready for intended use. Depreciation is

discontinued from the month in which it is disposed or classified as held for disposal.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Incrementaldepreciation being the difference between depreciation based on the revalued amounts recognized in profit or loss and depreciation

based on the historical cost, net of tax, is reclassified from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings. On the subsequent disposal or retirement 

of a revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.

Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods consists of direct material, labour and an appropriate proportion of

manufacturing overheads.

These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, with the exception of stock of waste which is valued at net realizable value. Cost is

determined using the following basis:

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land, buildings and plant and machinery is credited to the revaluation reserve, except

to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognized as an expense in profit or loss, in which case the

increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation

of such land, buildings and plant and machinery is recognized as an expense in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held 

in the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

Land, buildings and plant and machinery held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrativepurposes, are stated

in the statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairmentlosses, except for freehold land, which is not depreciated. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity

such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair values at the reporting date.

These are generally held for internal use and are valued at cost. Cost is determinedon the basis of moving average except for items in transit,

which are valued at invoice price plus related cost incurred up to the reporting date. For items which are considered obsolete, the carrying

amount is written down to nil. Spare parts held exclusively for capitalization are classified as property, plant and equipment.

All other items or property, plant and equipment(tools and equipment,office equipment,furniture and fixtures, arms and ammunitionand vehicles)

are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Assets in the course of construction for production, supply or administrativepurposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost,

less any recognized impairmentloss. Cost includes the cost of material, labour and appropriate overheads directly relating to the construction,

erection and installationof the asset and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy.

Depreciationof these assets, determinedon the same basis as other assets of the same class, commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss, using rates specified in note 17, so as to write off the cost or revalued amounts of assets (other than

freehold land and assets under construction) over their useful lives, using the reducing balance method, with the exception of computer

hardware and allied items, which are depreciated using straight line methodover their useful lives, and right-of-use assets, for which the lease

does not transfer ownership of the underlying asset to the Company at the end of lease term, which are depreciated over the shorter of lease

term and useful lives of the underlying assets, using straight line method.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the 

financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022.

The Company intends to adopt these new and revised standards, interpretations and amendmentson their effective dates, subject to, where

required, notification by Securities and Exchange Commissionof Pakistanunder section 225 of the CompaniesAct, 2017 regarding their adoption.

The managementanticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendmentsand interpretations in future periods, will not have a material

impact on the Company's financial statements other than in presentation/disclosures.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its

continued use. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of such items is determinedas the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
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5.4 Employee benefits

5.4.1 Short-term employee benefits

5.4.2 Post-employment benefits

5.5 Financial instruments

5.5.1 Recognition

5.5.2 Classification

(a) Financial assets at amortized cost

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ['fair value through OCI']

(i)

(ii)

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(d) Financial liabilities at amortized cost

(e) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

5.5.3 Measurement

A financial instrument is recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

These are financial assets held within a business modelwhose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cashflows

and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs 

necessary to make the sale.

The Companyrecognizes the undiscounted amountof short term employeebenefits to be paid in exchange for services rendered by employees

as a liability after deducting amount already paid and as an expense in profit or loss unless it is included in the cost of inventories or property,

plant and equipmentas permittedor required by the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. If the amountpaid exceeds the

undiscounted amount of benefits, the excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment would lead to a reduction in future

payments or cash refund.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) for all its employees who have completed the minimumqualifying

service period. Liability is adjusted on each reporting date to cover the obligation and the adjustment is charged to profit or loss with the exception 

of remeasurements which are recognized in other comprehensive income.The amount recognized on statement of financial position represents

the present value of defined benefit obligation.

investments in equity instruments, that are not held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by the Company

as acquirer in a business combination, for which the Company makes an irrevocable election at initial recognition to

present changes in fair value on subsequent measurement in other comprehensive income. 

These are financial assets which have not been classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost' or as 'financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income',are mandatorilymeasured at fair value through profit or loss or for which the Companymakes an irrevocable

election at initial recognition to designate as 'financial asset at fair value through profit or loss' if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a 

measurement or recognition inconsistency.

These are financial liabilitieswhich are not derivates, financial guarantee contracts, commitmentsto provide loans at below-market interest

rate, contingent consideration payable to an acquirer in a business combination or financial liabilitiesthat arise when transfer of a financial

asset does not qualify for derecognition.

These are financial liabilitieswhich have not been classified as 'financial liabilitiesat amortized cost' or for which the Company makes an

irrevocable election at initial recognition to designate as 'financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss' if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency.

These are:

financial assets held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows

and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

The Companyclassifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual

cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Financial liabilitiesare classified in accordance with the substance of contractual provisions. The

Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition as follows:

The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in individual policy statements associated with each financial instrument.

5.5.4 Derecognition

5.5.5 Off-setting

5.5.6 Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets

5.6 Ordinary share capital

5.7 Loans and borrowings

5.8 Short-term leases

5.9 Trade and other payables

5.9.1 Financial liabilities

5.9.2 Non-financial liabilities

5.10 Provisions and contingencies

5.11 Trade and other receivables

5.11.1 Financial assets

5.11.2 Non-financial assets

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if the Company has legally

enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of twelve

months or less from the commencementdate and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

These are classified as 'financial liabilitiesat amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at cost, being their fair value at the date

the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss.

A financial asset is derecognized when the Company's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or when the

Company transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control of substantially all risks and rewards of the financial asset. A

financial liability is derecognized when the Company's obligations specified in the contract are expired, discharged or cancelled.

Loans and borrowings are classified as 'financial liabilitiesat amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at cost, being fair value at

the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost with

any difference between cost and value at maturity recognized in the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest

basis.

Ordinary share capital is recognized as equity. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as deduction 

from equity.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the timeframe established by

regulation or convention in the market place. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade

date basis.

These are classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at fair value at the date of transaction, plus

attributable transaction costs, except for trade debts that do not have a significant financing compenent, which are measured at undiscounted

invoice price. Subsequent to initialrecognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,with interest recognized

in profit or loss.

Provisions are recognized when the Companyhas a legal and constructive obligationas a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be madeof the amount of obligation.

The amount recognized as provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligationat the reporting date, taking

into account the risk and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.Where a provision is measured using cash flows estimatedto settle the present

obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. Where outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not

probable, or where a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of

outflow is remote.

These, on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost. 

These, on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost. 
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5.4 Employee benefits
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5.5 Financial instruments
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(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ['fair value through OCI']

(i)

(ii)

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(d) Financial liabilities at amortized cost

(e) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

5.5.3 Measurement

A financial instrument is recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

These are financial assets held within a business modelwhose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cashflows

and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

on the principal amount outstanding.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs 

necessary to make the sale.

The Companyrecognizes the undiscounted amountof short term employeebenefits to be paid in exchange for services rendered by employees

as a liability after deducting amount already paid and as an expense in profit or loss unless it is included in the cost of inventories or property,

plant and equipmentas permittedor required by the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. If the amountpaid exceeds the

undiscounted amount of benefits, the excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment would lead to a reduction in future

payments or cash refund.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit plan) for all its employees who have completed the minimumqualifying

service period. Liability is adjusted on each reporting date to cover the obligation and the adjustment is charged to profit or loss with the exception 

of remeasurements which are recognized in other comprehensive income.The amount recognized on statement of financial position represents

the present value of defined benefit obligation.

investments in equity instruments, that are not held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by the Company

as acquirer in a business combination, for which the Company makes an irrevocable election at initial recognition to

present changes in fair value on subsequent measurement in other comprehensive income. 

These are financial assets which have not been classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost' or as 'financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income',are mandatorilymeasured at fair value through profit or loss or for which the Companymakes an irrevocable

election at initial recognition to designate as 'financial asset at fair value through profit or loss' if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a 

measurement or recognition inconsistency.

These are financial liabilitieswhich are not derivates, financial guarantee contracts, commitmentsto provide loans at below-market interest

rate, contingent consideration payable to an acquirer in a business combination or financial liabilitiesthat arise when transfer of a financial

asset does not qualify for derecognition.

These are financial liabilitieswhich have not been classified as 'financial liabilitiesat amortized cost' or for which the Company makes an

irrevocable election at initial recognition to designate as 'financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss' if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency.

These are:

financial assets held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows

and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and

The Companyclassifies its financial assets on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual

cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Financial liabilitiesare classified in accordance with the substance of contractual provisions. The

Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition as follows:

The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in individual policy statements associated with each financial instrument.

5.5.4 Derecognition

5.5.5 Off-setting

5.5.6 Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets

5.6 Ordinary share capital

5.7 Loans and borrowings

5.8 Short-term leases

5.9 Trade and other payables

5.9.1 Financial liabilities

5.9.2 Non-financial liabilities

5.10 Provisions and contingencies

5.11 Trade and other receivables

5.11.1 Financial assets

5.11.2 Non-financial assets

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if the Company has legally

enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of twelve

months or less from the commencementdate and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

These are classified as 'financial liabilitiesat amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at cost, being their fair value at the date

the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss.

A financial asset is derecognized when the Company's contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or when the

Company transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control of substantially all risks and rewards of the financial asset. A

financial liability is derecognized when the Company's obligations specified in the contract are expired, discharged or cancelled.

Loans and borrowings are classified as 'financial liabilitiesat amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at cost, being fair value at

the date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost with

any difference between cost and value at maturity recognized in the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest

basis.

Ordinary share capital is recognized as equity. Transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as deduction 

from equity.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the timeframe established by

regulation or convention in the market place. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade

date basis.

These are classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost'. On initialrecognition, these are measured at fair value at the date of transaction, plus

attributable transaction costs, except for trade debts that do not have a significant financing compenent, which are measured at undiscounted

invoice price. Subsequent to initialrecognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,with interest recognized

in profit or loss.

Provisions are recognized when the Companyhas a legal and constructive obligationas a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be madeof the amount of obligation.

The amount recognized as provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligationat the reporting date, taking

into account the risk and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.Where a provision is measured using cash flows estimatedto settle the present

obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. Where outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not

probable, or where a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of

outflow is remote.

These, on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost. 

These, on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost. 
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5.12 Contracts with Customers

5.12.1 Revenue

5.12.2 Contract assets

5.12.3 Contract liabilities

5.13 Comprehensive income

5.14 Borrowing costs

5.15 Income tax

5.15.1 Current taxation

5.15.2 Deferred taxation

Yarn and Waste

Contract assets represent work performed upto the reporting date which has not been invoiced to customers because the related performance

obligations remain partially unsatisfied as at the reporting date.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from the

customer. A contract liability is recognized at earlier of when the payment is madeor the payment is due if a customer pays consideration before

the Company transfers goods or services to the customer.

Revenue recognition policies

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years.

Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if 

any. The amountof unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in

respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.

Comprehensiveincome is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes resulting from transactions with

shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all components of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income ['OCI'].OCIcomprises items of income and expense, including reclassification adjustments, that are not recognized in profit or loss as

required or permitted by accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and is presented in 'statement of comprehensive income'.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a

substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their

expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit

or loss as incurred.

Incometax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Incometax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates

to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognises revenue from a contract

with customer when the Companysatisfies an obligationspecified in that contract. The following table provides information about the nature and

timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue

recognition policies.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the' balance sheet approach' providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the

portion of income that is subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the treatment prescribed by The Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Pakistan. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,

based on laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable

temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be

available against which temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Performance obligations are satisfied when goods are

dispatched to the customers. Invoices are generated at

that point in time and are usually payable within a period

ranging from 30 days to 90 days. There are no customer

loyaty programs or waranty provisions. However, some

contracts allow for return of goods if those do not meet

the requirements or specifications provided in the 

Product/service obligations, including significant payment terms

Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance

Revenue is recognised at a point in

timewhen the goods are dispatched

to customers.

5.16 Earnings per share ['EPS']

5.17 Cash and cash equivalents

5.18 Segment reporting

5.19 Foreign currency transactions and balances

5.20 Impairment

5.20.1 Financial assets

5.20.2 Non-financial assets

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial condition and there is

no realistic prospect of recovery. Any recoveries made post write-off are recognized in profit or loss.

The carrying amountof the Company’snon-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date

to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.The

recoverable amountof an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in

use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency of the Company using exchange rate prevailing at the date of

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitiesdenominatedin foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate prevailing

at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilitiesdenominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated to the

functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date the fair value is determined.Non-monetaryassets and liabilitiesdenominated in foreign

currency that are measured at historical cost are translated to functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date of initialrecognition.

Any gain or loss arising on translation of foreign currency transactions and balances is recognized in profit or loss.

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date of initialrecognition.

The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the

respective financial asset.

Impairment is recognized at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for financial assets for which credit risk has increased significantly 

since initialrecognition. For financial assets for which credit risk is low, impairmentis recognized at an amountequal to twelve months' expected

credit losses, with the exception of trade receivables, for which the Company recognises lifetime expected credit losses estimated using internal

credit risk grading based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to debtors, general economic

conditions, and an assessment for both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of

money where appropriate.
All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event

occurring after the impairmentloss was recognized. An impairmentloss is reversed only to the extent that the financial asset’s carrying amount

after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of amortization, if no impairmentloss had been

recognized.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairmentlosses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairmentlosses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated to reduce the

carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairmentlosses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date

for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairmentloss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates

used in determiningthe recoverable amount.An impairmentloss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amountafter the reversal

does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairmentloss had been

recognized.

Basic EPSis calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPSis calculated by adjusting basic EPSby the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all

dilutive potentialordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the

Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and cash at banks. Interest income on cash and cash

equivalents is recognized using effective interest method.

Segment reporting is based on the operating segments that are reported in the manner consistent with internal reporting of the Company. An

operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,

including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. An operating segment’s operating

results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its

performance and for which discrete financial information is available. The Company is a single operating segment based on internal reporting to

the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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5.12 Contracts with Customers

5.12.1 Revenue

5.12.2 Contract assets

5.12.3 Contract liabilities

5.13 Comprehensive income

5.14 Borrowing costs

5.15 Income tax

5.15.1 Current taxation

5.15.2 Deferred taxation

Yarn and Waste

Contract assets represent work performed upto the reporting date which has not been invoiced to customers because the related performance

obligations remain partially unsatisfied as at the reporting date.

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from the

customer. A contract liability is recognized at earlier of when the payment is madeor the payment is due if a customer pays consideration before

the Company transfers goods or services to the customer.

Revenue recognition policies

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years.

Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if 

any. The amountof unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in

respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.

Comprehensiveincome is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes resulting from transactions with

shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all components of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income ['OCI'].OCIcomprises items of income and expense, including reclassification adjustments, that are not recognized in profit or loss as

required or permitted by accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and is presented in 'statement of comprehensive income'.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a

substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their

expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit

or loss as incurred.

Incometax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Incometax expense is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates

to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. The Company recognises revenue from a contract

with customer when the Companysatisfies an obligationspecified in that contract. The following table provides information about the nature and

timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment terms, and the related revenue

recognition policies.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the' balance sheet approach' providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of the

portion of income that is subject to final tax regime is also considered in accordance with the treatment prescribed by The Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Pakistan. Deferred tax is measured at rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,

based on laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable

temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be

available against which temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the

extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Performance obligations are satisfied when goods are

dispatched to the customers. Invoices are generated at

that point in time and are usually payable within a period

ranging from 30 days to 90 days. There are no customer

loyaty programs or waranty provisions. However, some

contracts allow for return of goods if those do not meet

the requirements or specifications provided in the 

Product/service obligations, including significant payment terms

Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance

Revenue is recognised at a point in

timewhen the goods are dispatched

to customers.

5.16 Earnings per share ['EPS']

5.17 Cash and cash equivalents

5.18 Segment reporting

5.19 Foreign currency transactions and balances

5.20 Impairment

5.20.1 Financial assets

5.20.2 Non-financial assets

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial condition and there is

no realistic prospect of recovery. Any recoveries made post write-off are recognized in profit or loss.

The carrying amountof the Company’snon-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date

to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.The

recoverable amountof an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in

use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the functional currency of the Company using exchange rate prevailing at the date of

transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitiesdenominatedin foreign currency are translated to the functional currency at exchange rate prevailing

at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilitiesdenominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated to the

functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date the fair value is determined.Non-monetaryassets and liabilitiesdenominated in foreign

currency that are measured at historical cost are translated to functional currency at exchange rate prevailing at the date of initialrecognition.

Any gain or loss arising on translation of foreign currency transactions and balances is recognized in profit or loss.

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost on date of initialrecognition.

The amount of expected credit losses is updated on each reporting date to reflect the changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the

respective financial asset.

Impairment is recognized at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses for financial assets for which credit risk has increased significantly 

since initialrecognition. For financial assets for which credit risk is low, impairmentis recognized at an amountequal to twelve months' expected

credit losses, with the exception of trade receivables, for which the Company recognises lifetime expected credit losses estimated using internal

credit risk grading based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to debtors, general economic

conditions, and an assessment for both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of

money where appropriate.
All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event

occurring after the impairmentloss was recognized. An impairmentloss is reversed only to the extent that the financial asset’s carrying amount

after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of amortization, if no impairmentloss had been

recognized.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairmentlosses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairmentlosses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated to reduce the

carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairmentlosses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date

for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairmentloss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates

used in determiningthe recoverable amount.An impairmentloss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amountafter the reversal

does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairmentloss had been

recognized.

Basic EPSis calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPSis calculated by adjusting basic EPSby the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all

dilutive potentialordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the

Company that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and cash at banks. Interest income on cash and cash

equivalents is recognized using effective interest method.

Segment reporting is based on the operating segments that are reported in the manner consistent with internal reporting of the Company. An

operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,

including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. An operating segment’s operating

results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its

performance and for which discrete financial information is available. The Company is a single operating segment based on internal reporting to

the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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6 AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 200,000,000     200,000,000      

200,000,000     200,000,000      

7 ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued for cash 87,750,000
       

87,750,000
        

87,750,000
       

87,750,000
        

30-Jun-24

20,000,000        

30-Jun-24

No. of shares

No. of shares

8,775,000
                                   

8,775,000
                                   

No. of shares

20,000,000                                 

30-Jun-25

8,775,000
          

8,775,000
          

20,000,000        

30-Jun-25

No. of shares

20,000,000                                 

5.21 Dividend distribution to ordinary shareholders

 Dividend to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a deduction from retained earnings in statement of changes in equity and as a liability, to the extent 
it is unclaimed/unpaid, in the Company’s financial statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.                                

5.22 Fair value measurements

 ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a 
liability reflects its non-performance risk

 A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. 

 The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration 
given or received. If the Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced 
neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are 
judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the 
difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an 
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is 
closed out.                

 When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market 
is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an 
ongoing basis.

 If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into 
account in pricing a transaction.

 If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Company measures assets and long positions at a bid price 
and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

 Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.                

 - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly 
(i.e. derived from prices).

 - Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is 
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.                

 The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.                                

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

8 REVALUATION RESERVE

As at beginning of the year 204,118,039

     

207,406,125

      

Incremental depreciation recognized in other comprehensive income

Incremental depreciation for the year (4,424,848)

        

(4,631,107)

        

Deferred taxation 1,283,206

         

1,343,021

          

(3,141,642)

        

(3,288,086)

        

As at end of the year 200,976,397

     

204,118,039

      

9 LOAN FROM SPONSORS

Face value 9.2 861,520,405

     

853,226,205

      

Less: unamortized notional interest 9.3 -

                    

-

                    

861,520,405

     

853,226,205

      

9.1

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

9.2 Movement during the year is as follows:

As at beginning of the year 853,226,205
     

841,500,000
      

Obtained during the year 8,294,200
         

11,726,205
        

As at end of the year 861,520,405     853,226,205      

9.3 Unamortized notional interest

As at beginning of the year -                    161,389,590      
Arising during the year -                    -                    
Amortization for the year -                    (161,389,590)    
As at end of the year -

                    
-

                    

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

10 LONG TERM FINANCES

These represent long term finances utilized under interest

arrangements from banking companies

Diminishing musharakah 10.1 83,333,334

       

83,333,334

        
Demand finance 10.2 227,500,000

     

227,500,000

      310,833,334

     

310,833,334

      
Current maturity presented under current liabilities (310,833,334)

    

(310,833,334)

    
-

                    

-

                    10.1

10.2

This loan has been obtained from sponsors of the Company and is unsecured and interest free. During the year the board has approved to

change the nature of the loan which is now repayable at the discretion of the Company and has been reclassified accordingly. Earlier the loan

was payable by 30 June 2025 and was carried at amortized cost using a discount rate of 9.85%, being the average effective borrowing rate of

the Company. This loan is subordinated to long term and short term borrowings obtained from various banking institutions.

The finance has been obtained from National Bank of Pakistanto finance long term working capital requirements and is secured by charge over

operating fixed assets and current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's directors. The finance carries interest at

three months KIBORplus 2% per annum (30-Jun-24: three month KIBORplus 2.0% per annum), payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in

eight equal bi-annual installmentswith the first installmentdue in June 2017. As at reporting date, an amountof Rs 227.50 millionis overdue and is

under litigation. An amount of Rs.83.78 millionhas been accrued on account of markup/interest up till June-2021 which remained unpaid till the

reporting date.

The finance has been obtained from SilkBank Limitedto finance long term working capital requirements and is secured by charge over operating

fixed assets and current assets of the Companyand personal guarantees of the Company's directors. The finance carries profit at three months

KIBORplus 3.5% per annum(30-Jun-24: three months KIBORplus 3.5% per annum), payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in twelve equal

quarterly installments with the first installmentdue in August 2016. As at reporting date, an amount of Rs 83.33 millionis overdue and is under

litigation.An amountof Rs.58.97 millionhas been accrued on account of markup/interestup till June-2023 which remained unpaid till the reporting

date.
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6 AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 200,000,000     200,000,000      

200,000,000     200,000,000      

7 ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued for cash 87,750,000
       

87,750,000
        

87,750,000
       

87,750,000
        

30-Jun-24

20,000,000        

30-Jun-24

No. of shares

No. of shares

8,775,000
                                   

8,775,000
                                   

No. of shares

20,000,000                                 

30-Jun-25

8,775,000
          

8,775,000
          

20,000,000        

30-Jun-25

No. of shares

20,000,000                                 

5.21 Dividend distribution to ordinary shareholders

 Dividend to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a deduction from retained earnings in statement of changes in equity and as a liability, to the extent 
it is unclaimed/unpaid, in the Company’s financial statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.                                

5.22 Fair value measurements

 ‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a 
liability reflects its non-performance risk

 A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values. 

 The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration 
given or received. If the Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced 
neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are 
judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the 
difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an 
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is 
closed out.                

 When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market 
is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an 
ongoing basis.

 If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into 
account in pricing a transaction.

 If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Company measures assets and long positions at a bid price 
and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

 Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.                

 - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 - Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly 
(i.e. derived from prices).

 - Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is 
categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.                

 The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.                                

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

8 REVALUATION RESERVE

As at beginning of the year 204,118,039

     

207,406,125

      

Incremental depreciation recognized in other comprehensive income

Incremental depreciation for the year (4,424,848)

        

(4,631,107)

        

Deferred taxation 1,283,206

         

1,343,021

          

(3,141,642)

        

(3,288,086)

        

As at end of the year 200,976,397

     

204,118,039

      

9 LOAN FROM SPONSORS

Face value 9.2 861,520,405

     

853,226,205

      

Less: unamortized notional interest 9.3 -

                    

-

                    

861,520,405

     

853,226,205

      

9.1

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

9.2 Movement during the year is as follows:

As at beginning of the year 853,226,205
     

841,500,000
      

Obtained during the year 8,294,200
         

11,726,205
        

As at end of the year 861,520,405     853,226,205      

9.3 Unamortized notional interest

As at beginning of the year -                    161,389,590      
Arising during the year -                    -                    
Amortization for the year -                    (161,389,590)    
As at end of the year -

                    
-

                    

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

10 LONG TERM FINANCES

These represent long term finances utilized under interest

arrangements from banking companies

Diminishing musharakah 10.1 83,333,334

       

83,333,334

        
Demand finance 10.2 227,500,000

     

227,500,000

      310,833,334

     

310,833,334

      
Current maturity presented under current liabilities (310,833,334)

    

(310,833,334)

    
-

                    

-

                    10.1

10.2

This loan has been obtained from sponsors of the Company and is unsecured and interest free. During the year the board has approved to

change the nature of the loan which is now repayable at the discretion of the Company and has been reclassified accordingly. Earlier the loan

was payable by 30 June 2025 and was carried at amortized cost using a discount rate of 9.85%, being the average effective borrowing rate of

the Company. This loan is subordinated to long term and short term borrowings obtained from various banking institutions.

The finance has been obtained from National Bank of Pakistanto finance long term working capital requirements and is secured by charge over

operating fixed assets and current assets of the Company and personal guarantees of the Company's directors. The finance carries interest at

three months KIBORplus 2% per annum (30-Jun-24: three month KIBORplus 2.0% per annum), payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in

eight equal bi-annual installmentswith the first installmentdue in June 2017. As at reporting date, an amountof Rs 227.50 millionis overdue and is

under litigation. An amount of Rs.83.78 millionhas been accrued on account of markup/interest up till June-2021 which remained unpaid till the

reporting date.

The finance has been obtained from SilkBank Limitedto finance long term working capital requirements and is secured by charge over operating

fixed assets and current assets of the Companyand personal guarantees of the Company's directors. The finance carries profit at three months

KIBORplus 3.5% per annum(30-Jun-24: three months KIBORplus 3.5% per annum), payable quarterly. The finance is repayable in twelve equal

quarterly installments with the first installmentdue in August 2016. As at reporting date, an amount of Rs 83.33 millionis overdue and is under

litigation.An amountof Rs.58.97 millionhas been accrued on account of markup/interestup till June-2023 which remained unpaid till the reporting

date.
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11 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS - GRATUITY 101,907,337 101,907,337

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

12 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences 12.1 137,520,000

     

138,024,262

      

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences 12.1 (118,178,171)

    

(110,144,828)

    

19,341,829

       

27,879,434

        

12.1 Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

As at Recognized in Recognized As at

01-Jul-24 profit or loss in OCI 30-Jun-25

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax liabilities

Operating fixed assets 138,024,262
      

(504,262)
          

-
                    

137,520,000
      

Deferred tax assets

Employees retirement benefits (29,553,128)
      

-
                   

-
                    

(29,553,128)
      

Unused tax losses and credits (80,591,700)      (8,033,343)       -                    (88,625,043)      

(110,144,828)    (8,033,343)       -                    (118,178,171)    

27,879,434        (8,537,605)       -                    19,341,829        

As at Recognized in Recognized As at

01-Jul-23 profit or loss in OCI 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees Rupees RupeesDeferred tax liabilities

Operating fixed assets 141,975,834

      
(3,951,572)

       
-

                    
138,024,262

      
Deferred tax assets

Employees retirement benefits (29,553,128)

      

-

                   

-

                    

(29,553,128)

      Unused tax losses and credits (75,541,896)

      

(5,049,804)

       

-

                    

(80,591,700)

      (105,095,024)

    

(5,049,804)

       

-

                    

(110,144,828)

    
36,880,810

        

(9,001,376)

       

-

                    

27,879,434

        12.1

Unused tax losses and credits for which no deferred tax asset has been recognized expire as follows:

Nature 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Tax losses                        -         255,772,274 

Tax losses       166,729,163       166,729,163 

Tax losses         38,306,338         38,306,338 

Tax losses         20,349,665         20,349,665 

Tax losses         72,927,917         72,927,917 

      173,077,545       173,077,545 

          8,294,200                        -   

      479,684,828       727,162,902 

30-Jun-24

30-Jun-25

2028

2029

Tax year

2025

2026

2027

Deferred tax has been calculated at 29% (30-Jun-24: 29%) of the timing differences so determined based on tax rates notified by the

Government of Pakistan for future tax years.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan, for all its employees who have completed the minimumqualifying

service period. Under the scheme, the Company pays a lump-sum benefit equal to last drawn monthly gross salary for each year of service to

scheme memberswhereas the membersof the scheme are not required to makeany contributions to the scheme. The scheme is administeredby

the managementof the Company under the supervision and directions of the Board of Directors of the Company. No acturial valuation has been

carried out as at 30 June 2025 as the Company has discontinued the scheme.

2030

2031

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 96,473,061

       

96,473,060

        

Accrued liabilities 187,961,594

     

187,961,594

      

Advances from customers 13.1 97,343,144

       

97,343,144

        

Workers' Welfare Fund 13.2 11,759,230

       

11,759,230

        

Other payables 24,635,082

       

24,635,082

        

418,172,111

     

418,172,110

      

13.1 These represent advances received from customers adjustable against future sales.

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

13.2 Workers' Welfare Fund

As at beginning of the year 11,759,230

       

11,759,230

        

Provision during the year 27 -

                    

-

                    

As at end of the year 11,759,230

       

11,759,230

        

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

14 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

These represent short term finances obtained from

Banking companies 14.1 722,537,650     722,537,650      

Directors and sponsors 14.2 7,281                7,281                 

722,544,931     722,544,931      

14.1 Banking companies

These represent short term finances utilized under interest arrangements

Cash finance - BoP 14.1.1 361,259,129
     

361,259,129
      Cash finance - NBP 14.1.2 287,394,769

     
287,394,769

      Term loan - BoP 14.1.3 73,883,752

       

73,883,752

        722,537,650

     

722,537,650

      
14.1.1

 
14.1.2

14.1.3

14.1.3 For restrictions on title, and assets pledged as security, refer to note 39 to the financial statements.

14.2 Directors and sponsors

These represent interest free loans obtained from directors and sponsors of the Company and are repayable on demand.

These facilities have been obtained from National Bank of Pakistan for working capital requirements and are secured by charge over current

assets and operating fixed assets of the Company, pledge of stock and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The facility carries

interest at three months KIBORplus 2% per annum(30-Jun-24: three months KIBORplus 2% per annum), payable quarterly. As at reporting date,

an amountof Rs 648.653 millionis overdue and is under litigation.An amountof Rs. 98.53 millionhas been accrued on account of markup/interest

up till June-2021 which remained unpaid till the reporting date.

The facility has been obtained from the Bank of Punjab for working capital requirements and is secured by charge over current assets and

operating fixed assets of the Company, pledge of stock and personal guarantees of the Company'sDirectors. The facility carries interest at three

months KIBORplus 2% per annum(30-Jun-24: three months KIBORplus 2% per annum), payable quarterly. As at reporting date, an amount of Rs

73.883 millionis overdue and is under litigation. An amount of Rs. 20.72 millionhas been accrued on account of markup/interestup till June-2021

which remained unpaid till the reporting date.

These facilities have been obtained from the Bank of Punjab for working capital requirements and are secured by charge over current assets and 

operating fixed assets of the Company, pledge of stock and personal guarantees of the Company'sDirectors. The facility carries interest at three

months KIBORplus 2% per annum(30-Jun-24: three months KIBORplus 2% per annum), payable quarterly. As at reporting date, an amount of Rs

648.653 millionis overdue and is under litigation. An amount of Rs.124 millionhas been accrued on account of markup/interestup till June-2021

which remained unpaid till the reporting date.
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11 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS - GRATUITY 101,907,337 101,907,337

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

12 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax liability on taxable temporary differences 12.1 137,520,000

     

138,024,262

      

Deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences 12.1 (118,178,171)

    

(110,144,828)

    

19,341,829

       

27,879,434

        

12.1 Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

As at Recognized in Recognized As at

01-Jul-24 profit or loss in OCI 30-Jun-25

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax liabilities

Operating fixed assets 138,024,262
      

(504,262)
          

-
                    

137,520,000
      

Deferred tax assets

Employees retirement benefits (29,553,128)
      

-
                   

-
                    

(29,553,128)
      

Unused tax losses and credits (80,591,700)      (8,033,343)       -                    (88,625,043)      

(110,144,828)    (8,033,343)       -                    (118,178,171)    

27,879,434        (8,537,605)       -                    19,341,829        

As at Recognized in Recognized As at

01-Jul-23 profit or loss in OCI 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees Rupees RupeesDeferred tax liabilities

Operating fixed assets 141,975,834

      
(3,951,572)

       
-

                    
138,024,262

      
Deferred tax assets

Employees retirement benefits (29,553,128)

      

-

                   

-

                    

(29,553,128)

      Unused tax losses and credits (75,541,896)

      

(5,049,804)

       

-

                    

(80,591,700)

      (105,095,024)

    

(5,049,804)

       

-

                    

(110,144,828)

    
36,880,810

        

(9,001,376)

       

-

                    

27,879,434

        12.1

Unused tax losses and credits for which no deferred tax asset has been recognized expire as follows:

Nature 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Tax losses                        -         255,772,274 

Tax losses       166,729,163       166,729,163 

Tax losses         38,306,338         38,306,338 

Tax losses         20,349,665         20,349,665 

Tax losses         72,927,917         72,927,917 

      173,077,545       173,077,545 

          8,294,200                        -   

      479,684,828       727,162,902 

30-Jun-24

30-Jun-25

2028

2029

Tax year

2025

2026

2027

Deferred tax has been calculated at 29% (30-Jun-24: 29%) of the timing differences so determined based on tax rates notified by the

Government of Pakistan for future tax years.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme, a defined benefit plan, for all its employees who have completed the minimumqualifying

service period. Under the scheme, the Company pays a lump-sum benefit equal to last drawn monthly gross salary for each year of service to

scheme memberswhereas the membersof the scheme are not required to makeany contributions to the scheme. The scheme is administeredby

the managementof the Company under the supervision and directions of the Board of Directors of the Company. No acturial valuation has been

carried out as at 30 June 2025 as the Company has discontinued the scheme.

2030

2031

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 96,473,061

       

96,473,060

        

Accrued liabilities 187,961,594

     

187,961,594

      

Advances from customers 13.1 97,343,144

       

97,343,144

        

Workers' Welfare Fund 13.2 11,759,230

       

11,759,230

        

Other payables 24,635,082

       

24,635,082

        

418,172,111

     

418,172,110

      

13.1 These represent advances received from customers adjustable against future sales.

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

13.2 Workers' Welfare Fund

As at beginning of the year 11,759,230

       

11,759,230

        

Provision during the year 27 -

                    

-

                    

As at end of the year 11,759,230

       

11,759,230

        

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

14 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

These represent short term finances obtained from

Banking companies 14.1 722,537,650     722,537,650      

Directors and sponsors 14.2 7,281                7,281                 

722,544,931     722,544,931      

14.1 Banking companies

These represent short term finances utilized under interest arrangements

Cash finance - BoP 14.1.1 361,259,129
     

361,259,129
      Cash finance - NBP 14.1.2 287,394,769

     
287,394,769

      Term loan - BoP 14.1.3 73,883,752

       

73,883,752

        722,537,650

     

722,537,650

      
14.1.1

 
14.1.2

14.1.3

14.1.3 For restrictions on title, and assets pledged as security, refer to note 39 to the financial statements.

14.2 Directors and sponsors

These represent interest free loans obtained from directors and sponsors of the Company and are repayable on demand.

These facilities have been obtained from National Bank of Pakistan for working capital requirements and are secured by charge over current

assets and operating fixed assets of the Company, pledge of stock and personal guarantees of the Company's Directors. The facility carries

interest at three months KIBORplus 2% per annum(30-Jun-24: three months KIBORplus 2% per annum), payable quarterly. As at reporting date,

an amountof Rs 648.653 millionis overdue and is under litigation.An amountof Rs. 98.53 millionhas been accrued on account of markup/interest

up till June-2021 which remained unpaid till the reporting date.

The facility has been obtained from the Bank of Punjab for working capital requirements and is secured by charge over current assets and

operating fixed assets of the Company, pledge of stock and personal guarantees of the Company'sDirectors. The facility carries interest at three

months KIBORplus 2% per annum(30-Jun-24: three months KIBORplus 2% per annum), payable quarterly. As at reporting date, an amount of Rs

73.883 millionis overdue and is under litigation. An amount of Rs. 20.72 millionhas been accrued on account of markup/interestup till June-2021

which remained unpaid till the reporting date.

These facilities have been obtained from the Bank of Punjab for working capital requirements and are secured by charge over current assets and 

operating fixed assets of the Company, pledge of stock and personal guarantees of the Company'sDirectors. The facility carries interest at three

months KIBORplus 2% per annum(30-Jun-24: three months KIBORplus 2% per annum), payable quarterly. As at reporting date, an amount of Rs

648.653 millionis overdue and is under litigation. An amount of Rs.124 millionhas been accrued on account of markup/interestup till June-2021

which remained unpaid till the reporting date.
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15 ACCRUED INTEREST / PROFIT

As at reporting date interest/profit amounting to Rs 386.279 million is overdue. (note 10 and 14) 386,279,029

     

386,279,029

      

16 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

16.1 Contingencies

16.1.1

16.1.2

16.1.3

16.2 Commitments

16.2.1 There are no known commitments as at the reporting date.

The Companymay have to indemnify its Directors for any losses that may arise due to personal guarantees given by them for securing the debts

of the Company, in case the Company defaults.

Gas Infrastructure DevelopmentCess ['GIDC']was levied by Sui Northern Gas PipelinesLimited['SNGPL']and Sui Southern Gas PipelinesLimited

['SSGCL'].The Company and others have filed a suit before the Lahore HighCourt ['LHC']and Sindh High Court ['SHC'] challenging the levy. The

LHC & SHC have granted the stay in favour of the Company and directed SNGPLand SSGC to avoid collection of GIDC.The Company has not

recognized any provision for GIDC amounting to Rs. 39.39 million as a favourable ourcome is expected.

All the providers of debt facilities (financial institutions) have filed recovery suits against the Companyand the Company has also filed counter-

suits against the financial institutions which are pending in Lahore HighCourt. Due to pending decisions of the suits, the Companyis not accruing

markup/intereston its various loan/finance facilities. (note 10 and 14) as the reasonable estimateof the markup/interest liability is not determinable

at this stage till the final decision of the courts. (see Note 14)
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15 ACCRUED INTEREST / PROFIT

As at reporting date interest/profit amounting to Rs 386.279 million is overdue. (note 10 and 14) 386,279,029

     

386,279,029

      

16 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

16.1 Contingencies

16.1.1

16.1.2

16.1.3

16.2 Commitments

16.2.1 There are no known commitments as at the reporting date.

The Companymay have to indemnify its Directors for any losses that may arise due to personal guarantees given by them for securing the debts

of the Company, in case the Company defaults.

Gas Infrastructure DevelopmentCess ['GIDC']was levied by Sui Northern Gas PipelinesLimited['SNGPL']and Sui Southern Gas PipelinesLimited

['SSGCL'].The Company and others have filed a suit before the Lahore HighCourt ['LHC']and Sindh High Court ['SHC'] challenging the levy. The

LHC & SHC have granted the stay in favour of the Company and directed SNGPLand SSGC to avoid collection of GIDC.The Company has not

recognized any provision for GIDC amounting to Rs. 39.39 million as a favourable ourcome is expected.

All the providers of debt facilities (financial institutions) have filed recovery suits against the Companyand the Company has also filed counter-

suits against the financial institutions which are pending in Lahore HighCourt. Due to pending decisions of the suits, the Companyis not accruing

markup/intereston its various loan/finance facilities. (note 10 and 14) as the reasonable estimateof the markup/interest liability is not determinable

at this stage till the final decision of the courts. (see Note 14)
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Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

17.3 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 24 29,105,513

       

30,652,303

        

Administrative expenses 25 334,504

            

386,926

             

29,440,017

       

31,039,229

        

17.4

Accumulated Net

Cost depreciation book value

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Freehold land             144,868                        -   144,868

             

Buildings on freehold land      142,157,800         79,204,744 62,953,056

        

Plant and machinery   1,151,056,760       647,939,278 503,117,482
      

Electric installation        55,565,912         34,799,853 20,766,059
        

Laboratory equipment          4,282,115           3,985,457 296,658
             

Fire fighting equipment             382,181              331,842 50,339
               

Accumulated Net

Cost depreciation book value

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Freehold land 144,868
           

-
                    

144,868
             

Buildings on freehold land 142,157,800
    

75,891,425
       

66,266,375
        Plant and machinery 1,151,056,760

 
621,459,410

     
529,597,350

      Electric installation 55,565,912

      
33,706,902

       
21,859,010

        Laboratory equipment 4,282,115

        

3,952,495

         

329,620

             Fire fighting equipment 382,181

           

326,249

            

55,932

               
17.4.1

Rupees

Freehold land 121,409,750

      

Buildings on freehold land 187,675,346

      

Plant and machinery 443,114,400

      

Electric installation 34,800,000

        

Laboratory equipment 3,984,400

          

Fire fighting equipment 800,000

             

791,783,896

      
18 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

30-Jun-25

As per most recent valuation, forced sale values of freehold land, buildings on freehold land, pland and machinery, electric installation,laboratory

equipment, fire fighting equipment are as follows:

Had there been no revaluation, the cost, accumulated depreciation and net book values of revalued items would have been as follows:

30-Jun-24

Most recent valuation of land, building, plant and machinary was carried out by an independent valuer Messrs Engineering Services (Private)

Limited as on 21 October 2015. For basis of valuation and other fair value measurement disclosures, refer to note 38.

These have been deposited with various utility companies and regulatory authorities. These are classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost'

under IFRS9 'Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement' which are required to be carried at amortized cost. However, these, being

held for an indefinite period with no fixed maturity date, are carried at cost as their amortized cost is impracticable to determine.
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Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

17.3 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 24 29,105,513

       

30,652,303

        

Administrative expenses 25 334,504

            

386,926

             

29,440,017

       

31,039,229

        

17.4

Accumulated Net

Cost depreciation book value

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Freehold land             144,868                        -   144,868

             

Buildings on freehold land      142,157,800         79,204,744 62,953,056

        

Plant and machinery   1,151,056,760       647,939,278 503,117,482
      

Electric installation        55,565,912         34,799,853 20,766,059
        

Laboratory equipment          4,282,115           3,985,457 296,658
             

Fire fighting equipment             382,181              331,842 50,339
               

Accumulated Net

Cost depreciation book value

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Freehold land 144,868
           

-
                    

144,868
             

Buildings on freehold land 142,157,800
    

75,891,425
       

66,266,375
        Plant and machinery 1,151,056,760

 
621,459,410

     
529,597,350

      Electric installation 55,565,912

      
33,706,902

       
21,859,010

        Laboratory equipment 4,282,115

        

3,952,495

         

329,620

             Fire fighting equipment 382,181

           

326,249

            

55,932

               
17.4.1

Rupees

Freehold land 121,409,750

      

Buildings on freehold land 187,675,346

      

Plant and machinery 443,114,400

      

Electric installation 34,800,000

        

Laboratory equipment 3,984,400

          

Fire fighting equipment 800,000

             

791,783,896

      
18 LONG TERM DEPOSITS

30-Jun-25

As per most recent valuation, forced sale values of freehold land, buildings on freehold land, pland and machinery, electric installation,laboratory

equipment, fire fighting equipment are as follows:

Had there been no revaluation, the cost, accumulated depreciation and net book values of revalued items would have been as follows:

30-Jun-24

Most recent valuation of land, building, plant and machinary was carried out by an independent valuer Messrs Engineering Services (Private)

Limited as on 21 October 2015. For basis of valuation and other fair value measurement disclosures, refer to note 38.

These have been deposited with various utility companies and regulatory authorities. These are classified as 'financial assets at amortized cost'

under IFRS9 'Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement' which are required to be carried at amortized cost. However, these, being

held for an indefinite period with no fixed maturity date, are carried at cost as their amortized cost is impracticable to determine.
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30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

19 STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material 456,545,598

     

456,545,598

      

Finished goods 108,894,900

     

108,894,900

      

565,440,498

     

565,440,498

      

19.1

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Gross amount due 96,587,763

       

96,587,763

        

96,587,763

       

96,587,763

        

21 ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances to suppliers 8,082,435

         
8,082,435

          

Advances to employees: 21.1

 - against purchases and expenses 718,035
            

718,035
             

 - against salaries and benefits 12,877,167
       

12,877,167
        

Sales tax refundable 19,690,140
       

19,690,140
        

Insurance claims receivable 1,922,460         1,922,460          

Other receivables 1,326,864         1,326,864          

44,617,101       44,617,101        

21.1

22 CURRENT TAXATION

Advance income tax/income tax refundable 11,764,760
       

11,764,760
        Provision for taxation 28 -

                    
-

                    
11,764,760

       
11,764,760

        

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 366,962

            

366,962

             
Cash at banks

current accounts -  local currency 2,260,724

         

2,260,724

          
deposit/saving accounts - local currency 23.1 1,762

                

1,762

                 
2,262,486

         

2,262,486

          
2,629,447

         

2,629,448

          23.1

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

24 COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed 24.1 -

                    

-

                    

Salaries, wages and benefits 864,000

            

864,000

             

Depreciation 17.3 29,105,513

       

30,652,303

        

Manufacturing cost 29,969,513 31,516,303

Effective interest rate in respect of deposit/saving accounts, for the year, ranges from 9.0% to 10% (30-Jun-24: 16.5% to 17% ).

No advances have been given to any of the directors of the Company.

Details of stock pledged as security are referred to in note 39 to the financial statements.

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Finished goods

As at beginning of the year 108,894,900

     

108,894,900

      

As at end of the year (108,894,900)

    

(108,894,900)

    

-

                    

-

                   

Cost of sales 29,969,513

       

31,516,303

        

24.1 Raw material consumed

As at beginning of the year 456,545,598

     

456,545,598

      

Purchased during the year -

                    

-

                   

As at end of the year (456,545,598)

    

(456,545,598)

    

-

                    

-

                   

25 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 2,940,000

         

3,560,150

          

Printing and stationery 25,000

              

60,440

               

Electricity, water and gas -

                    

-

                   

Communication 85,200

              

79,870

               

Vehicles running and maintenance -

                    

-

                   

Legal and professional 3,190,000

         

6,180,000

          

Auditor's remuneration 25.1 500,000

            

300,000

             

Fee and subscription 690,000

            

586,895

             

Rent rates and taxes -

                    

-

                   

Depreciation 17.3 334,504

            

386,926

             

Others -

                    

56,600

               

7,764,704

         

11,210,881

        

25.1 Auditor's remuneration

Annual statutory audit 300,000
            

200,000
             

Limited scope review 150,000
            

50,000
               

Review report under Code of Corporate Governance 50,000
              

50,000
               

Out of pocket expenses -                    -                   

500,000            300,000             

26 OTHER INCOME

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 17.2 -                    -                   

-
                    

-
                   

27 FINANCE COST

Interest/profit on borrowings:

long term finances -

                    

-

                   short term borrowings -

                    

-

                   -

                    

-

                   
Bank charges and commission - -

- -

28 PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Current taxation

current year 28.1 -

                    

-

                   

prior year -

                    

-

                   

- -

Deferred taxation 12 (8,537,605) (9,001,376)

(8,537,605) (9,001,376)
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30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

19 STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material 456,545,598

     

456,545,598

      

Finished goods 108,894,900

     

108,894,900

      

565,440,498

     

565,440,498

      

19.1

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Gross amount due 96,587,763

       

96,587,763

        

96,587,763

       

96,587,763

        

21 ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advances to suppliers 8,082,435

         
8,082,435

          

Advances to employees: 21.1

 - against purchases and expenses 718,035
            

718,035
             

 - against salaries and benefits 12,877,167
       

12,877,167
        

Sales tax refundable 19,690,140
       

19,690,140
        

Insurance claims receivable 1,922,460         1,922,460          

Other receivables 1,326,864         1,326,864          

44,617,101       44,617,101        

21.1

22 CURRENT TAXATION

Advance income tax/income tax refundable 11,764,760
       

11,764,760
        Provision for taxation 28 -

                    
-

                    
11,764,760

       
11,764,760

        

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 366,962

            

366,962

             
Cash at banks

current accounts -  local currency 2,260,724

         

2,260,724

          
deposit/saving accounts - local currency 23.1 1,762

                

1,762

                 
2,262,486

         

2,262,486

          
2,629,447

         

2,629,448

          23.1

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

24 COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed 24.1 -

                    

-

                    

Salaries, wages and benefits 864,000

            

864,000

             

Depreciation 17.3 29,105,513

       

30,652,303

        

Manufacturing cost 29,969,513 31,516,303

Effective interest rate in respect of deposit/saving accounts, for the year, ranges from 9.0% to 10% (30-Jun-24: 16.5% to 17% ).

No advances have been given to any of the directors of the Company.

Details of stock pledged as security are referred to in note 39 to the financial statements.

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Finished goods

As at beginning of the year 108,894,900

     

108,894,900

      

As at end of the year (108,894,900)

    

(108,894,900)

    

-

                    

-

                   

Cost of sales 29,969,513

       

31,516,303

        

24.1 Raw material consumed

As at beginning of the year 456,545,598

     

456,545,598

      

Purchased during the year -

                    

-

                   

As at end of the year (456,545,598)

    

(456,545,598)

    

-

                    

-

                   

25 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 2,940,000

         

3,560,150

          

Printing and stationery 25,000

              

60,440

               

Electricity, water and gas -

                    

-

                   

Communication 85,200

              

79,870

               

Vehicles running and maintenance -

                    

-

                   

Legal and professional 3,190,000

         

6,180,000

          

Auditor's remuneration 25.1 500,000

            

300,000

             

Fee and subscription 690,000

            

586,895

             

Rent rates and taxes -

                    

-

                   

Depreciation 17.3 334,504

            

386,926

             

Others -

                    

56,600

               

7,764,704

         

11,210,881

        

25.1 Auditor's remuneration

Annual statutory audit 300,000
            

200,000
             

Limited scope review 150,000
            

50,000
               

Review report under Code of Corporate Governance 50,000
              

50,000
               

Out of pocket expenses -                    -                   

500,000            300,000             

26 OTHER INCOME

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 17.2 -                    -                   

-
                    

-
                   

27 FINANCE COST

Interest/profit on borrowings:

long term finances -

                    

-

                   short term borrowings -

                    

-

                   -

                    

-

                   
Bank charges and commission - -

- -

28 PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Current taxation

current year 28.1 -

                    

-

                   

prior year -

                    

-

                   

- -

Deferred taxation 12 (8,537,605) (9,001,376)

(8,537,605) (9,001,376)
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28.1

28.1

Unit 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

29 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders Rupees (29,196,612)

      

(195,115,398)

    

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year No. of shares 8,775,000

         

8,775,000

          

Earnings/(loss) per share - Basic Rupees (3.33)

                 

(22.24)

               

There is no anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share of the Company.

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

30 CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

Profit/(loss) before taxation (37,734,217)

      

(204,116,774)

    

Adjustments for non-cash and other items

Finance cost -

                    

-

                   

Notional interest -

                    

161,389,590

      

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets -

                    
-

                   

Depreciation 29,440,017
       

31,039,229
        

29,440,017
       

192,428,819
      

Operating loss before changes in working capital (8,294,200)
        

(11,687,955)
      

Changes in working capital

Stores and spares (0)                      43,216,664        

Advances and other receivables (0)                      1,852,941          
Trade and other payables 0                       (45,107,855)      

(0)                      (38,251)             

Cash used in operations (8,294,200)
        

(11,726,206)
      

31 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 23 2,629,447

         
2,629,448

          
2,629,447

         

2,629,448

          
32 CHANGES FROM FINANCING CASH FLOWS

Loan from Short term

sponsors borrowings

Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year 853,226,205

     

722,544,931

      

Loan from sponsors obtained 8,294,200

 

-

                   

Notional interest recognized -

 

Net increase in short term borrowings - (0)

As at end of the year 861,520,405 722,544,931

The income tax assessments of the Companyup to and including tax year 2023 have been completedby the concerned income tax authorities or

are deemed to have been so completed under the provisions of section 120 of the Ordinance.

No provision is made for the year ended 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024 due to losses.

30-Jun-25

Loan from Short term

sponsors borrowings

Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year 680,110,410

     

722,544,931

      

Loan from sponsors obtained 11,726,205

       

-

                    

Notional interest reversed 161,389,590

     

-

                    

Net decrease in short term borrowings -

                    

-

                    

As at end of the year 853,226,205

     

722,544,931

      

33 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Name of related party Nature of relationship Basis of relationship

Chief executive officer 17.59%

 Director 18.38%

 Director 17.71%

 Director 17.59%

 Director 0.08%

 Director 0.03%

 Director 0.03%

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

33.1 Transactions with related parties

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Sponsors Loan obtained 8,294,200         11,726,205        
Short term borrowing (repaid)/obtained -                    (27,017)             
Rent paid -                    -                    

33.2 Balances with related parties

Nature of relationship Nature of balances

Sponsors Loan 861,520,405
     

853,226,205
      Short term borrowings 7,281

                
7,281

                 
34 CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

34.1 Contract balances

The information about receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with customers is as follows:

Nature of balance Presented in financial statements as Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Receivables Trade receivables 20 96,587,763

       

96,587,763

        

Contract liabilities Advances from customers 13 97,343,144

       

97,343,144

        

193,930,907

     

193,930,907

      
34.2 Changes in contract liabilities

There were no changes in contract liabilities during the year.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Mian Asad Salahuddin

Khalil Latif

Syed Abid Raza Zaidi

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Transactions with sponsors are limitedto provision of interest free loans to the Company and rental payments for office premises used by the

Company. Details of transactions and balances with related parties is as follows:

Key management personnel

Mian Iqbal Salahuddin

Ms. Munira Salahuddin

Mian Yousaf Salahuddin

Mian Sohail Salahuddin

Aggregate 

%age of 

shareholding 

in the 

Related parties from the Company's perspective comprise key management personnel and sponsors of the Company. Key management personnel 

are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, and 

includes the Chief Executive and Directors of the Company. The details of Company's related parties, with whom the Company had transactions

during the year or has balances outstanding as at the reporting date are as follows:

30-Jun-24
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28.1

28.1

Unit 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

29 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders Rupees (29,196,612)

      

(195,115,398)

    

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year No. of shares 8,775,000

         

8,775,000

          

Earnings/(loss) per share - Basic Rupees (3.33)

                 

(22.24)

               

There is no anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share of the Company.

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

30 CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

Profit/(loss) before taxation (37,734,217)

      

(204,116,774)

    

Adjustments for non-cash and other items

Finance cost -

                    

-

                   

Notional interest -

                    

161,389,590

      

Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets -

                    
-

                   

Depreciation 29,440,017
       

31,039,229
        

29,440,017
       

192,428,819
      

Operating loss before changes in working capital (8,294,200)
        

(11,687,955)
      

Changes in working capital

Stores and spares (0)                      43,216,664        

Advances and other receivables (0)                      1,852,941          
Trade and other payables 0                       (45,107,855)      

(0)                      (38,251)             

Cash used in operations (8,294,200)
        

(11,726,206)
      

31 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 23 2,629,447

         
2,629,448

          
2,629,447

         

2,629,448

          
32 CHANGES FROM FINANCING CASH FLOWS

Loan from Short term

sponsors borrowings

Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year 853,226,205

     

722,544,931

      

Loan from sponsors obtained 8,294,200

 

-

                   

Notional interest recognized -

 

Net increase in short term borrowings - (0)

As at end of the year 861,520,405 722,544,931

The income tax assessments of the Companyup to and including tax year 2023 have been completedby the concerned income tax authorities or

are deemed to have been so completed under the provisions of section 120 of the Ordinance.

No provision is made for the year ended 30 June 2025 and 30 June 2024 due to losses.

30-Jun-25

Loan from Short term

sponsors borrowings

Rupees Rupees

As at beginning of the year 680,110,410

     

722,544,931

      

Loan from sponsors obtained 11,726,205

       

-

                    

Notional interest reversed 161,389,590

     

-

                    

Net decrease in short term borrowings -

                    

-

                    

As at end of the year 853,226,205

     

722,544,931

      

33 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Name of related party Nature of relationship Basis of relationship

Chief executive officer 17.59%

 Director 18.38%

 Director 17.71%

 Director 17.59%

 Director 0.08%

 Director 0.03%

 Director 0.03%

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

33.1 Transactions with related parties

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions

Sponsors Loan obtained 8,294,200         11,726,205        
Short term borrowing (repaid)/obtained -                    (27,017)             
Rent paid -                    -                    

33.2 Balances with related parties

Nature of relationship Nature of balances

Sponsors Loan 861,520,405
     

853,226,205
      Short term borrowings 7,281

                
7,281

                 
34 CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

34.1 Contract balances

The information about receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with customers is as follows:

Nature of balance Presented in financial statements as Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Receivables Trade receivables 20 96,587,763

       

96,587,763

        

Contract liabilities Advances from customers 13 97,343,144

       

97,343,144

        

193,930,907

     

193,930,907

      
34.2 Changes in contract liabilities

There were no changes in contract liabilities during the year.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Mian Asad Salahuddin

Khalil Latif

Syed Abid Raza Zaidi

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Transactions with sponsors are limitedto provision of interest free loans to the Company and rental payments for office premises used by the

Company. Details of transactions and balances with related parties is as follows:

Key management personnel

Mian Iqbal Salahuddin

Ms. Munira Salahuddin

Mian Yousaf Salahuddin

Mian Sohail Salahuddin

Aggregate 

%age of 

shareholding 

in the 

Related parties from the Company's perspective comprise key management personnel and sponsors of the Company. Key management personnel 

are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, and 

includes the Chief Executive and Directors of the Company. The details of Company's related parties, with whom the Company had transactions

during the year or has balances outstanding as at the reporting date are as follows:

30-Jun-24
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments by class and category are as follows:

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

35.1 Financial assets

Cash in hand 23 366,962

            

366,962

             

Financial assets at amortized cost

Long term deposits 18 11,243,604

       

11,243,604

        

Trade receivables 20 96,587,763

       

96,587,763

        

Advances to employees 21 12,877,167

       

12,877,167

        

Short term deposits 1,613,107

         

1,613,107

          

Insurance claims receivable 21 1,922,460

         
1,922,460

          

Bank balances 23 2,262,486
         

2,262,486
          

126,873,549
     

126,873,549
      

35.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Loan from sponsors 9 8,294,200         -                    
Long term finances 10 83,333,334       83,333,334        
Short term borrowings 14 722,537,650     722,537,650      
Accrued interest/profit 15 386,279,029

     
386,279,029

      
Trade creditors 13 96,473,061

       
96,473,060

        
Accrued liabilities 13 187,961,594

     
187,961,594

      Unclaimed dividend 1,010,033
         

1,010,033
          

1,485,888,900 1,477,594,700

36 FINANCIAL RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT

 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. These risks affect revenues, expenses and 
assets and liabilities of the Company.

 The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of risk management framework. The Board of Directors has 
developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk management framework. The risk policy focuses on unpredictability of financial markets, 
the Company’s exposure to risk of adverse effects thereof and objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing such risks. The 
management team of the Company is responsible for administering and monitoring the financial and operational financial risk management 
throughout the Company in accordance with the risk management framework.

 The Company’s exposure to financial risks, the way these risks affect the financial position and performance, and forecast transactions of the 
Company and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

36.1 Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations.

36.1.1 Credit risk management practices

 In order to minimise credit risk, the Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthty counterparties and limiting significant exposure 
to any single counterparty. The Company only transacts with counterparties that have reasonably high external credit ratings. Where an external 
rating is not available, the Company uses an internal credit risk grading mechanism. Particularly for customers, a dedicated team responsible for the 
determination of credit limits uses a credit scoring system to assess the potential as well as existing customers' credit quality and assigns or updates 
credit limits accordingly. The ageing profile of trade receivables and individually significant balances, along with collection activities are reviewed on 
a regular basis. High risk customers are identified and restrictions are placed on future trading, including suspending future shipments and 
administering dispatches on a prepayment basis.

 The Company reviews the recoverable amount of each financial asset on an individual basis at each reporting date to ensure that adequate loss 
allowance is made in accordnace with the assessment of credit risk for each financial asset.

 The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has reasonably high external credit rating or if an external rating is 
not available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has no past due amounts or otherwise there is 
no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due in the normal course of business based on history with the counterparty.

 In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of a 
default occurring on the financial asset at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at the date of initial recognition. 
In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including 
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. Irrespective of the outcome of the above 
assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual 
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. This is 
usually the case with various customers of the Company where the Company has long standing business relationship with these customers and any 
amounts that are past due by more than 30 days in the normal course of business are considered 'performing' based on history with the customers. 
Therefore despite the foregoing, the Company considers some past due trade receivables to have low credit risk where the customer has a good 
history of meeting its contractual cash flow obligations and is expected to maintain the same in future.

 The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and 
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk.

 The Company considers 'default' to have occurred when the financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is ocnsidered to be credit-impaired 
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.

 The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial condition and there is no 
realistic prospect of recovery.

 The Company's credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Category Description Basis for recognizing ECL

Performing The counterparty has low credit risk Trade receivables: Liftime ECL

Other assets: 12-month ECL

Doubtful Credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition Lifetime ECL

In default There is evidence indicating the assets is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL

Write-off There is no realistic prospect of recovery Amount is written-off

36.1.2 Exposure to credit risk

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Financial assets at amortized cost

Long term deposits 18         11,243,604         11,243,604 

Trade receivables 20         96,587,763         96,587,763 

Advances to employees 21         12,877,167         12,877,167 

Security deposits           1,613,107           1,613,107 

Insurance claims receivable 21           1,922,460           1,922,460 

Bank balances 23           2,262,486           2,262,486 

126,506,587

     
      126,506,587 

36.1.3 Credit quality and impairment

External credit Internal credit 12-month or Gross carrying Loss

Note rating risk grading life-time ECL amount allowance

Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits 18 N/A Performing 12-month ECL         11,243,604                        -   

Trade receivables 20 N/A Performing Lifetime ECL         96,587,763                        -   

Advances to employees 21 N/A Performing 12-month ECL         12,877,167                        -   

Security deposits N/A Performing 12-month ECL           1,613,107                        -   

Insurance claims receivable 21 N/A Performing 12-month ECL           1,922,460                        -   

Bank balances 23 N/A 12-month ECL           2,262,486                        -   

      126,506,587                        -   

(a) Long term deposits

Credit risk principally arises from debt instruments held by the Company as at the reporting date. The maximumexposure to credit risk as at the

reporting date is as follows:

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available, or to internal credit risk grading. The credit

quality of the Company’s financial assets exposed to credit risk is as follows:

Long term deposits comprise security deposits placed with various utility companies and regulatory authorities. These deposits are

substantially perpetual in nature. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no loss

allowance has been made.

AA+/A1 to 

AAA/A1+
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments by class and category are as follows:

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

35.1 Financial assets

Cash in hand 23 366,962

            

366,962

             

Financial assets at amortized cost

Long term deposits 18 11,243,604

       

11,243,604

        

Trade receivables 20 96,587,763

       

96,587,763

        

Advances to employees 21 12,877,167

       

12,877,167

        

Short term deposits 1,613,107

         

1,613,107

          

Insurance claims receivable 21 1,922,460

         
1,922,460

          

Bank balances 23 2,262,486
         

2,262,486
          

126,873,549
     

126,873,549
      

35.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Loan from sponsors 9 8,294,200         -                    
Long term finances 10 83,333,334       83,333,334        
Short term borrowings 14 722,537,650     722,537,650      
Accrued interest/profit 15 386,279,029

     
386,279,029

      
Trade creditors 13 96,473,061

       
96,473,060

        
Accrued liabilities 13 187,961,594

     
187,961,594

      Unclaimed dividend 1,010,033
         

1,010,033
          

1,485,888,900 1,477,594,700

36 FINANCIAL RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT

 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. These risks affect revenues, expenses and 
assets and liabilities of the Company.

 The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of risk management framework. The Board of Directors has 
developed a risk policy that sets out fundamentals of risk management framework. The risk policy focuses on unpredictability of financial markets, 
the Company’s exposure to risk of adverse effects thereof and objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing such risks. The 
management team of the Company is responsible for administering and monitoring the financial and operational financial risk management 
throughout the Company in accordance with the risk management framework.

 The Company’s exposure to financial risks, the way these risks affect the financial position and performance, and forecast transactions of the 
Company and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

36.1 Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations.

36.1.1 Credit risk management practices

 In order to minimise credit risk, the Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthty counterparties and limiting significant exposure 
to any single counterparty. The Company only transacts with counterparties that have reasonably high external credit ratings. Where an external 
rating is not available, the Company uses an internal credit risk grading mechanism. Particularly for customers, a dedicated team responsible for the 
determination of credit limits uses a credit scoring system to assess the potential as well as existing customers' credit quality and assigns or updates 
credit limits accordingly. The ageing profile of trade receivables and individually significant balances, along with collection activities are reviewed on 
a regular basis. High risk customers are identified and restrictions are placed on future trading, including suspending future shipments and 
administering dispatches on a prepayment basis.

 The Company reviews the recoverable amount of each financial asset on an individual basis at each reporting date to ensure that adequate loss 
allowance is made in accordnace with the assessment of credit risk for each financial asset.

 The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has reasonably high external credit rating or if an external rating is 
not available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has no past due amounts or otherwise there is 
no significant increase in credit risk if the amounts are past due in the normal course of business based on history with the counterparty.

 In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of a 
default occurring on the financial asset at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset at the date of initial recognition. 
In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including 
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. Irrespective of the outcome of the above 
assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual 
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. This is 
usually the case with various customers of the Company where the Company has long standing business relationship with these customers and any 
amounts that are past due by more than 30 days in the normal course of business are considered 'performing' based on history with the customers. 
Therefore despite the foregoing, the Company considers some past due trade receivables to have low credit risk where the customer has a good 
history of meeting its contractual cash flow obligations and is expected to maintain the same in future.

 The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and 
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk.

 The Company considers 'default' to have occurred when the financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is ocnsidered to be credit-impaired 
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.

 The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counter-party is in severe financial condition and there is no 
realistic prospect of recovery.

 The Company's credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Category Description Basis for recognizing ECL

Performing The counterparty has low credit risk Trade receivables: Liftime ECL

Other assets: 12-month ECL

Doubtful Credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition Lifetime ECL

In default There is evidence indicating the assets is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL

Write-off There is no realistic prospect of recovery Amount is written-off

36.1.2 Exposure to credit risk

Note 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Financial assets at amortized cost

Long term deposits 18         11,243,604         11,243,604 

Trade receivables 20         96,587,763         96,587,763 

Advances to employees 21         12,877,167         12,877,167 

Security deposits           1,613,107           1,613,107 

Insurance claims receivable 21           1,922,460           1,922,460 

Bank balances 23           2,262,486           2,262,486 

126,506,587

     
      126,506,587 

36.1.3 Credit quality and impairment

External credit Internal credit 12-month or Gross carrying Loss

Note rating risk grading life-time ECL amount allowance

Rupees Rupees

Long term deposits 18 N/A Performing 12-month ECL         11,243,604                        -   

Trade receivables 20 N/A Performing Lifetime ECL         96,587,763                        -   

Advances to employees 21 N/A Performing 12-month ECL         12,877,167                        -   

Security deposits N/A Performing 12-month ECL           1,613,107                        -   

Insurance claims receivable 21 N/A Performing 12-month ECL           1,922,460                        -   

Bank balances 23 N/A 12-month ECL           2,262,486                        -   

      126,506,587                        -   

(a) Long term deposits

Credit risk principally arises from debt instruments held by the Company as at the reporting date. The maximumexposure to credit risk as at the

reporting date is as follows:

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available, or to internal credit risk grading. The credit

quality of the Company’s financial assets exposed to credit risk is as follows:

Long term deposits comprise security deposits placed with various utility companies and regulatory authorities. These deposits are

substantially perpetual in nature. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and accordingly no loss

allowance has been made.

AA+/A1 to 

AAA/A1+
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(b) Trade receivables

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Neither past due nor impaired -

                    

-

                    

Past due by 0 to 6 months -

                    

-

                    

Past due by 6 to 12 months -

                    

-

                    

Past due by over one year 96,587,763

       

96,587,770

        

96,587,763

       

96,587,770

        

(c) Advanes to employees

(d) Short term deposits

(e) Insurance claim receivables

(f) Bank balances

36.1.4 Concentrations of credit risk

36.1.5 Collateral held

36.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

36.2.1 Liquidity risk management

The bankers of the Company have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various indpendent credit rating agencies. Due to long

standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial standing, managementdoes not expect any

credit loss. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and acordingly no loss allownace has been made.

For trade receivables, the Company has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The

Companydetermines the expected credit losses on trade receivables by using internal credit risk gradings. As at the reporting date, all trade

receivables are considered 'performing' including those past due as there is no significant increase in credit risk in respect of these debts

since initial recognition. The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the reporting date is as follows:

Advances to employees have been given against future salaries and post-employment benefits. Therefore, no credit risk has been

associated with these financial assets and acordingly no loss allownace has been made.

Security deposits comprise deposits placed with utility companies and yarn suppliers. These deposits are substantially perpetual in nature.

Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and acordingly no loss allownace has been made.

These are claims receivable against group life, health and vehicles insurance. Managementexpect a full recovery against these claims.

Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and acordingly no loss allownace has been made.

The Company'sapproach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities

when due, under both normaland stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damageto the Company's reputation. The

Companymonitors cash flow requirements and produces cash flow projections for the short and long term. Typically, the Company ensures that

it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational cash flows, including servicing of financial obligations.This includes maintenance

of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large 

individual customer. The Company also maintains various lines of credit with banking companies and also has continued financial support of its

directors and sponsors.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, except for trade receivables. The Company's two (30-Jun-24: two) significant customers

account for Rs. 49.58 million(30-Jun-24: Rs. 49.58 million)of trade receivables as at the reporting date, apart from which, exposure to any single

customer does not exceed 10% (30-Jun-24: 10%) of trade receivables as at the reporting date. These significant customers have long standing

business relationships with the Company and have a good payment record and accordingly non-performance by these customers is not

expected.

The Company does not hold any collateral to secure its financial assets.

36.2.2 Exposure to liquidity risk

The followings is the analysis of contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest/profit payments.

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than

amount cash flows or less five years five years

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Loan from sponsors 861,520,405

     

861,520,405

      

-

                   

-

                    

861,520,405

      

Long term finances 310,833,334

     

336,685,305

      

336,685,305

    

-

                    

-

                    

Short term borrowings 722,537,650

     

722,537,650

      

722,537,650

    

-

                    

-

                    

Accrued interest/profit 386,279,029

     

386,279,029

      

386,279,029

    

-

                    

-

                    

Trade creditors 96,473,061

       

96,473,061

        

96,473,061

      

-

                    

-

                    

Accrued liabilities 187,961,594

     

187,961,594

      

187,961,594

    

-

                    

-

                    

2,565,605,073

  

2,591,457,044

   

1,729,936,639

 

-

                    

861,520,405

      

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than

amount cash flows or less five years five years

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Loan from sponsors 853,226,205

     
853,226,205

      
-

                   
-

                    
853,226,205

      

Long term finances 310,833,334
     

336,685,305
      

336,685,305
    

-
                    

-
                    

Short term borrowings 722,537,650
     

722,537,650
      

722,537,650
    

-
                    

-
                    

Accrued interest/profit 386,279,029
     

386,279,029
      

386,279,029
    

-
                    

-
                    

Trade creditors 96,473,060
       

96,473,060
        

96,473,060
      

-
                    

-
                    

Accrued liabilities 187,961,594     187,961,593      187,961,593    -                    -                    

2,557,310,872  2,583,162,842   1,729,936,637 -                    853,226,205      

36.2.3 Overdue financial liabilities

Principal Markup/Interest Total

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 310,833,334

    

-

                    

310,833,334

      Short term borrowings 722,537,650

    

-

                    

722,537,650

        1,033,370,984                        -      1,033,370,984 

36.3 Market risk

36.3.1 Currency risk

36.3.2 Interest rate risk

(a) Interest rate risk management

30-Jun-24

The Companymanages interest rate risk by analysing its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Cash flow interest rate risk is managed

by simulatingvarious scenarios taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative financing. Based on these

scenarios, the Company calculates impact on profit after taxation and equity of defined interest rate shift, mostly 100 basis points.

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates.

The Company is facing a liquidity shortfall as a result of which it was unable to meet its obligations in respect of various debt finances. The

details are as follows:

Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange

rates. Currency risk arises from sales, purchases and resulting balances that are denominated in a currency other than functional currency. The

Company is not currently exposed to currency risk as at the reporting date.

30-Jun-25

30-Jun-25

The management of the Company is in the process of negotiations with the lenders regarding rescheduling/restructuring of overdue debt

finances.
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(b) Trade receivables

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Neither past due nor impaired -

                    

-

                    

Past due by 0 to 6 months -

                    

-

                    

Past due by 6 to 12 months -

                    

-

                    

Past due by over one year 96,587,763

       

96,587,770

        

96,587,763

       

96,587,770

        

(c) Advanes to employees

(d) Short term deposits

(e) Insurance claim receivables

(f) Bank balances

36.1.4 Concentrations of credit risk

36.1.5 Collateral held

36.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

36.2.1 Liquidity risk management

The bankers of the Company have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various indpendent credit rating agencies. Due to long

standing business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial standing, managementdoes not expect any

credit loss. Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and acordingly no loss allownace has been made.

For trade receivables, the Company has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The

Companydetermines the expected credit losses on trade receivables by using internal credit risk gradings. As at the reporting date, all trade

receivables are considered 'performing' including those past due as there is no significant increase in credit risk in respect of these debts

since initial recognition. The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the reporting date is as follows:

Advances to employees have been given against future salaries and post-employment benefits. Therefore, no credit risk has been

associated with these financial assets and acordingly no loss allownace has been made.

Security deposits comprise deposits placed with utility companies and yarn suppliers. These deposits are substantially perpetual in nature.

Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and acordingly no loss allownace has been made.

These are claims receivable against group life, health and vehicles insurance. Managementexpect a full recovery against these claims.

Therefore, no credit risk has been associated with these financial assets and acordingly no loss allownace has been made.

The Company'sapproach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities

when due, under both normaland stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damageto the Company's reputation. The

Companymonitors cash flow requirements and produces cash flow projections for the short and long term. Typically, the Company ensures that

it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational cash flows, including servicing of financial obligations.This includes maintenance

of balance sheet liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large 

individual customer. The Company also maintains various lines of credit with banking companies and also has continued financial support of its

directors and sponsors.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, except for trade receivables. The Company's two (30-Jun-24: two) significant customers

account for Rs. 49.58 million(30-Jun-24: Rs. 49.58 million)of trade receivables as at the reporting date, apart from which, exposure to any single

customer does not exceed 10% (30-Jun-24: 10%) of trade receivables as at the reporting date. These significant customers have long standing

business relationships with the Company and have a good payment record and accordingly non-performance by these customers is not

expected.

The Company does not hold any collateral to secure its financial assets.

36.2.2 Exposure to liquidity risk

The followings is the analysis of contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest/profit payments.

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than

amount cash flows or less five years five years

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Loan from sponsors 861,520,405

     

861,520,405

      

-

                   

-

                    

861,520,405

      

Long term finances 310,833,334

     

336,685,305

      

336,685,305

    

-

                    

-

                    

Short term borrowings 722,537,650

     

722,537,650

      

722,537,650

    

-

                    

-

                    

Accrued interest/profit 386,279,029

     

386,279,029

      

386,279,029

    

-

                    

-

                    

Trade creditors 96,473,061

       

96,473,061

        

96,473,061

      

-

                    

-

                    

Accrued liabilities 187,961,594

     

187,961,594

      

187,961,594

    

-

                    

-

                    

2,565,605,073

  

2,591,457,044

   

1,729,936,639

 

-

                    

861,520,405

      

Carrying Contractual One year One to More than

amount cash flows or less five years five years

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Loan from sponsors 853,226,205

     
853,226,205

      
-

                   
-

                    
853,226,205

      

Long term finances 310,833,334
     

336,685,305
      

336,685,305
    

-
                    

-
                    

Short term borrowings 722,537,650
     

722,537,650
      

722,537,650
    

-
                    

-
                    

Accrued interest/profit 386,279,029
     

386,279,029
      

386,279,029
    

-
                    

-
                    

Trade creditors 96,473,060
       

96,473,060
        

96,473,060
      

-
                    

-
                    

Accrued liabilities 187,961,594     187,961,593      187,961,593    -                    -                    

2,557,310,872  2,583,162,842   1,729,936,637 -                    853,226,205      

36.2.3 Overdue financial liabilities

Principal Markup/Interest Total

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Long term finances 310,833,334

    

-

                    

310,833,334

      Short term borrowings 722,537,650

    

-

                    

722,537,650

        1,033,370,984                        -      1,033,370,984 

36.3 Market risk

36.3.1 Currency risk

36.3.2 Interest rate risk

(a) Interest rate risk management

30-Jun-24

The Companymanages interest rate risk by analysing its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Cash flow interest rate risk is managed

by simulatingvarious scenarios taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and alternative financing. Based on these

scenarios, the Company calculates impact on profit after taxation and equity of defined interest rate shift, mostly 100 basis points.

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates.

The Company is facing a liquidity shortfall as a result of which it was unable to meet its obligations in respect of various debt finances. The

details are as follows:

Currency risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange

rates. Currency risk arises from sales, purchases and resulting balances that are denominated in a currency other than functional currency. The

Company is not currently exposed to currency risk as at the reporting date.

30-Jun-25

30-Jun-25

The management of the Company is in the process of negotiations with the lenders regarding rescheduling/restructuring of overdue debt

finances.
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(b) Interest/profit bearing financial instruments

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets -

                    

-

                    

Financial liabilities 861,520,405

     

853,226,205

      

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets 1,762

                

1,762

                 

Financial liabilities 1,033,370,984

  

1,033,370,984

   

(c) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

(d) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments and cash flow hedges

36.3.3 Other price risk

37 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Unit 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Total debt Rupees 1,033,378,265

  

1,033,378,265

   
Total equity Rupees (493,036,651)

    

(472,134,239)

    
Total capital employed 540,341,614

     

561,244,026

      
Gearing % age 191.25% 184.12%

38 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

38.1

38.1.1

There are no recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

The Company does not account for fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates as at the reporting date would have decreased profit for the year by Rs. 10.33 million(30-

Jun-24: Rs. 10.33 million).A decrease of 100 basis points wound have had an equal but opposite effect on profit for the year. The analysis

assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant and ignores the impact, if any, on provision for

taxation for the year.

The effective interest/profit rates for interest bearing financial instruments are mentioned in relevant notes to the financial statements. The

Company's interest bearing financial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

Othre price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

prices, other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual

financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments. The Company is not exposed to price risk since the fair

values of the Company's financial instruments are not based on market prices.

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital managementduring the year except for reclassification of loan from directors in

equity. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements, except those, related to maintenance of debt covenants, commonly 

imposed by the providers of debt finance.

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future

development of the business. Any temporary shortfall is met through interest free loans from sponsors. The Board of Directors monitors the

return on capital and level of dividends to ordinary shareholders and seeks to keep a balance between the higher return that might be possible

with higher level of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Company monitors capital using the

gearing ratio which is debt divided by total capital employed. Debt comprises long term finances and loan from sponsors, including current

maturity. Total capital employed includes total equity, as shown in the statement of financial position, plus debt. The Company's strategy is to

maintain an optimal capital structure in order to minimize cost of capital. Gearing ratio of the Company as at the reporting date is as follows:

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Recurring fair value measurements

The Company measures some of its assets at fair value. The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value and the

information about how the fair values of these financial instruments are determined are as follows:

38.1.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

38.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

38.3 Assets and liabilities other than financial instruments

38.3.1 Recurring fair value measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Freehold land                       -   142,835,000

      

                     -   142,835,000

     

142,835,000

      

Buildings on freehold land                       -         137,380,948 -

                       

137,380,948

     

144,611,524

      

Plant and machinery                       -         384,198,709 -

                       

384,198,709

     

404,419,694

      

Electric installation                       -           26,577,564 -

                       

26,577,564

       

27,976,383

        

Laboratory equipment                       -             1,800,911 -

                       

1,800,911

         

2,001,012

          

Fire fighting equipment                       -                361,593 -

                       

361,593

            

401,770

             

For fair value measurements categorised into Level 2  the following information is relevant:

Freehold land

Buildings on 

freehold land

Plant and 

machinery

Electric 

installation

Estimated purchase price,

including import duties and non-

refundable purchase taxes and

other costs directly attributable to

the acquisition or construction,

erection and installation.

Estimated construction costs and

other ancillary expenditure.

Estimated purchase price,

including import duties and non-

refundable purchase taxes and

other costs directly attributable to

the acquisition or construction,

erection and installation.

Estimated purchase price,

including non-refundable purchase

taxes and other costs directly

attributable to the acquisition.

Market comparable approach that

reflects recent transaction prices

for similar properties

Cost approach that reflects the

cost to the market participants to

construct assets of comparable

utility and age, adjusted for

obsolescence and depreciation.

There was no change in valuation 

Cost approach that reflects the

cost to the market participants to

acquire assets of comparable utility

and age, adjusted for

obsolescence and depreciation.

There was no change in valuation

technique during the year.

Cost approach that reflects the

cost to the market participants to

acquire assets of comparable utility

and age, adjusted for

obsolescence and depreciation.

There was no change in valuation

technique during the year.

A 5% increase in estimated

purchase price, including import

duties and non-refundable purchase

taxes and other directly attributable

costs would results in a significant

increase in fair value of electric

installation by Rs.1.329 million (30-

Jun-24: Rs. 1.399 million).

A 5% increase in estimated

purchase price, including import

duties and non-refundable purchase

taxes and other directly attributable

costs would results in a significant

increase in fair value of plant and

machinery by Rs. 19.21 million(30-

Jun-24: Rs. 20.221 million).

A 5% increase in estimated

construction and other ancillary

expenditure would results in a

significant increase in fair value of

buildings by Rs. 6.869 million (30-Jun-

24: Rs. 7.231 million).

Sensitivity

A 5% increase in estimated

purchase price, including non-

refundable purchase taxes and

other costs directly attributable to

the acquisition would result in a

significant increase in fair value of

buildings by Rs. 7.142 million (30-Jun-

24: Rs. 7.142 million).

Significant inputs

For recurring fair value measurements, the fair value hierarchy and information about how the fair values are determined is as follows:

Valuation technique

The management considers the carrying amount of all financial instruments not measured at fair value to approximate their carrying values.
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(b) Interest/profit bearing financial instruments

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets -

                    

-

                    

Financial liabilities 861,520,405

     

853,226,205

      

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets 1,762

                

1,762

                 

Financial liabilities 1,033,370,984

  

1,033,370,984

   

(c) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

(d) Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments and cash flow hedges

36.3.3 Other price risk

37 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Unit 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Total debt Rupees 1,033,378,265

  

1,033,378,265

   
Total equity Rupees (493,036,651)

    

(472,134,239)

    
Total capital employed 540,341,614

     

561,244,026

      
Gearing % age 191.25% 184.12%

38 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

38.1

38.1.1

There are no recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

The Company does not account for fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates as at the reporting date would have decreased profit for the year by Rs. 10.33 million(30-

Jun-24: Rs. 10.33 million).A decrease of 100 basis points wound have had an equal but opposite effect on profit for the year. The analysis

assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant and ignores the impact, if any, on provision for

taxation for the year.

The effective interest/profit rates for interest bearing financial instruments are mentioned in relevant notes to the financial statements. The

Company's interest bearing financial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

Othre price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market

prices, other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual

financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments. The Company is not exposed to price risk since the fair

values of the Company's financial instruments are not based on market prices.

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital managementduring the year except for reclassification of loan from directors in

equity. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements, except those, related to maintenance of debt covenants, commonly 

imposed by the providers of debt finance.

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future

development of the business. Any temporary shortfall is met through interest free loans from sponsors. The Board of Directors monitors the

return on capital and level of dividends to ordinary shareholders and seeks to keep a balance between the higher return that might be possible

with higher level of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The Company monitors capital using the

gearing ratio which is debt divided by total capital employed. Debt comprises long term finances and loan from sponsors, including current

maturity. Total capital employed includes total equity, as shown in the statement of financial position, plus debt. The Company's strategy is to

maintain an optimal capital structure in order to minimize cost of capital. Gearing ratio of the Company as at the reporting date is as follows:

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Recurring fair value measurements

The Company measures some of its assets at fair value. The fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value and the

information about how the fair values of these financial instruments are determined are as follows:

38.1.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

38.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value

38.3 Assets and liabilities other than financial instruments

38.3.1 Recurring fair value measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

Freehold land                       -   142,835,000

      

                     -   142,835,000

     

142,835,000

      

Buildings on freehold land                       -         137,380,948 -

                       

137,380,948

     

144,611,524

      

Plant and machinery                       -         384,198,709 -

                       

384,198,709

     

404,419,694

      

Electric installation                       -           26,577,564 -

                       

26,577,564

       

27,976,383

        

Laboratory equipment                       -             1,800,911 -

                       

1,800,911

         

2,001,012

          

Fire fighting equipment                       -                361,593 -

                       

361,593

            

401,770

             

For fair value measurements categorised into Level 2  the following information is relevant:

Freehold land

Buildings on 

freehold land

Plant and 

machinery

Electric 

installation

Estimated purchase price,

including import duties and non-

refundable purchase taxes and

other costs directly attributable to

the acquisition or construction,

erection and installation.

Estimated construction costs and

other ancillary expenditure.

Estimated purchase price,

including import duties and non-

refundable purchase taxes and

other costs directly attributable to

the acquisition or construction,

erection and installation.

Estimated purchase price,

including non-refundable purchase

taxes and other costs directly

attributable to the acquisition.

Market comparable approach that

reflects recent transaction prices

for similar properties

Cost approach that reflects the

cost to the market participants to

construct assets of comparable

utility and age, adjusted for

obsolescence and depreciation.

There was no change in valuation 

Cost approach that reflects the

cost to the market participants to

acquire assets of comparable utility

and age, adjusted for

obsolescence and depreciation.

There was no change in valuation

technique during the year.

Cost approach that reflects the

cost to the market participants to

acquire assets of comparable utility

and age, adjusted for

obsolescence and depreciation.

There was no change in valuation

technique during the year.

A 5% increase in estimated

purchase price, including import

duties and non-refundable purchase

taxes and other directly attributable

costs would results in a significant

increase in fair value of electric

installation by Rs.1.329 million (30-

Jun-24: Rs. 1.399 million).

A 5% increase in estimated

purchase price, including import

duties and non-refundable purchase

taxes and other directly attributable

costs would results in a significant

increase in fair value of plant and

machinery by Rs. 19.21 million(30-

Jun-24: Rs. 20.221 million).

A 5% increase in estimated

construction and other ancillary

expenditure would results in a

significant increase in fair value of

buildings by Rs. 6.869 million (30-Jun-

24: Rs. 7.231 million).

Sensitivity

A 5% increase in estimated

purchase price, including non-

refundable purchase taxes and

other costs directly attributable to

the acquisition would result in a

significant increase in fair value of

buildings by Rs. 7.142 million (30-Jun-

24: Rs. 7.142 million).

Significant inputs

For recurring fair value measurements, the fair value hierarchy and information about how the fair values are determined is as follows:

Valuation technique

The management considers the carrying amount of all financial instruments not measured at fair value to approximate their carrying values.
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Laboratory 

equipment

Fire fighting 

equipment

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized in Level 2 is presented in note 17.4.

Estimated purchase price,

including import duties and non-

refundable purchase taxes and

other costs directly attributable to

the acquisition or construction,

erection and installation.

Estimated purchase price,

including import duties and non-

refundable purchase taxes and

other costs directly attributable to

the acquisition or construction,

erection and installation.

Cost approach that reflects the

cost to the market participants to

acquire assets of comparable utility

and age, adjusted for

obsolescence and depreciation.

There was no change in valuation

technique during the year.

Cost approach that reflects the

cost to the market participants to

acquire assets of comparable utility

and age, adjusted for

obsolescence and depreciation.

There was no change in valuation

technique during the year.

A 5% increase in estimated

purchase price, including import

duties and non-refundable purchase

taxes and other directly attributable

costs would results in a significant

increase in fair value of electric

installation by Rs.0.018 million (30-

Jun-24: Rs. 0.02 million).

A 5% increase in estimated

purchase price, including import

duties and non-refundable purchase

taxes and other directly attributable

costs would results in a significant

increase in fair value of electric

installationby Rs.0.09 million(30-Jun-

24: Rs. 0.1 million).

There were no transfers between fair value hierarchies during the year.

SensitivitySignificant inputsValuation technique

38.3.2 Non-recurring fair value measurements

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Rupees Rupees

39 RESTRICTION ON TITLE AND ASSETS PLEDGED/MORTGAGED AS SECURITY 

Mortgages and charges

Charge over current assets 513,840,000

     

513,840,000

      

Charge over fixed assets 1,008,282,000

  

1,008,282,000

   

Pledge

Raw material 456,545,598

     

456,545,598

      

Finished goods 108,894,900

     

108,894,900

      

40 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive Directors Executives

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration -
                   

-
                    

1,200,000
          

Allowances and perquisites -
                   

-
                    

-
                    

Post employment benefits -
                   

-
                    

-
                    

-                   -                    1,200,000          

Number of persons 1                      7                       1                        

Additionally the chief executive, directors and executives are also provided company maintained vehicles.

The aggregate amount charged to profit or loss in respect of chief executive, directors and executives on account of managerialremuneration,

allowances and perquisites, post employment benefits and the number of such directors and executives is as follows:

30-Jun-25

There are no non-recurring fair value measurements as at the reporting date.

Chief Executive Directors Executives

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration -

                   
-

                    
480,000

             Allowances and perquisites -

                   

-

                    

-

                   Post employment benefits -

                   

-

                    

-

                   
-

                   

-

                    

480,000

             Number of persons 1

                      

7

                       

1

                       Additionally the chief executive, directors and executives are also provided company maintained vehicles.

41 SEGMENT INFORMATION

41.1 The Company is a single reportable segment.

41.2 All non-current assets of the Company are situated in Pakistan. 

42 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Total number of employees 3

                       

4

                       

Average number of employees 3

                       

4

                       

43 RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS AND IMPAIRMENT

As at the reporting date, subject to appropriateness of going concern assumption, recoverable amounts of all assets/cash generating units are

equal to or exceed their carrying amounts, unless stated otherwise in these financial statements.

30-Jun-24

44 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Unit 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Owned

Number of spindles installed No. 56,076
              

56,076
               

Plant capacity on the basis of utilization converted into 40s count Kgs 8,555,000         8,555,000          

Actual production converted into 40s count Kgs -                    -                    

45 GENERAL

46 Date of authorization for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on ------------------------------ by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Comparative figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, there were no

significant reclassifications during the year.

It is difficult to precisely compare production capacity and the resultant production converted into base count in the textile industry since it

fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as count of yarn spun, raw materials used, spindle speed and twist etc. It would also vary

according to the pattern of production adopted in a particular year. During the year, the Company has cancelled the lease of rented facility.
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Chief Executive Directors Executives

Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration -

                   
-

                    
480,000

             Allowances and perquisites -

                   

-

                    

-

                   Post employment benefits -

                   

-

                    

-

                   
-

                   

-

                    

480,000

             Number of persons 1

                      

7

                       

1

                       Additionally the chief executive, directors and executives are also provided company maintained vehicles.

41 SEGMENT INFORMATION

41.1 The Company is a single reportable segment.

41.2 All non-current assets of the Company are situated in Pakistan. 

42 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Total number of employees 3

                       

4

                       

Average number of employees 3

                       

4

                       

43 RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS AND IMPAIRMENT

As at the reporting date, subject to appropriateness of going concern assumption, recoverable amounts of all assets/cash generating units are

equal to or exceed their carrying amounts, unless stated otherwise in these financial statements.

30-Jun-24

44 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Unit 30-Jun-25 30-Jun-24

Owned

Number of spindles installed No. 56,076
              

56,076
               

Plant capacity on the basis of utilization converted into 40s count Kgs 8,555,000         8,555,000          

Actual production converted into 40s count Kgs -                    -                    

45 GENERAL

46 Date of authorization for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 01 October 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Comparative figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, there were no

significant reclassifications during the year.

It is difficult to precisely compare production capacity and the resultant production converted into base count in the textile industry since it

fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as count of yarn spun, raw materials used, spindle speed and twist etc. It would also vary

according to the pattern of production adopted in a particular year. During the year, the Company has cancelled the lease of rented facility.

MIAN IQBAL SALAHUDDIN 
Chief Execu�ve 

MIAN YOUSAF SALAHUDDIN 
Director 

Lahore 
Date : 01 October 2025

ABID ALI BAJWA
Chief Financial Officer



54

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025

55

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025



54

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025

55

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025



56

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025

57

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025



56

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025

57

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025



58

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025

59                                                                        

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited Annual Report 2025

I/We______________________________________________________________________________________
of_________________________________________________________________________________________
being  a member of Sally Tex�le Mills Limited, hereby appoint __________________________ ______________

__________________of __________________ another member of the company as my / our proxy to a�end & 

 

 WITNESSES

 1.
 
Signature:________________________

 Name:___________________________

 Address:_________________________

  

Signature of

 _________________________________

  

Shareholder

 CNIC or __________________________

 Passport No. _____________________

 
 

2.

 

Signature:________________________

 
Name: ___________________________

 
Address: _________________________

 
_________________________________

 
CNIC or __________________________

   

(Signature should agree with the
Passport No. _____________________

   

Specimen signature registered

 

With the Company)

 Revenue

 Stamp

 

FORM OF PROXY 

Sally Tex�le Mills Limited 
2-S, Gulberg II, Lahore.      

57th
 Annual        

General Mee�ng  
 

Important

 

 

Registered folio/par�cipants_____________________

ID No. and A/c No. ___________________________
____________________________________________

Number of shares held:_________________________

____________________________________________

Instruments of Proxy will not be considered as valid 
unlessDeposited or received at the company's Head 
Office at 2-S, Gulberg-II, Lahore not later than 48 hours 
before the �me holding the mee�ng.

th
vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 57  Annual General mee�ng of the Company to be held Thursday, 

rd23  October 2025 at 10:30 am at 2-S, Gulberg II, Lahore and at any adjournment thereof.
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vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 57  Annual General mee�ng of the Company to be held Thursday, 
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The Company Secretary 

SALLY TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 
2-S, Gulberg II, Lahore.

REGISTERED OFFICE :
2S, Gulberg II, Lahore.
Phones : 042 - 35759002
Fax : 042 - 35754394
E-mail: sallytex@hotmail.com 
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SALLY TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED 
2-S, Gulberg II, Lahore.

REGISTERED OFFICE :
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Fax : 042 - 35754394
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